DIRECTORS’ REPORT- FY 2019-20

The Members,
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(erstwhile Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the Twelfth Annual Report of your Company together with

the Audited Accounts and Auditor's Report for the financial year ended 31+ March 2020

Financial Highlights

(Amount in Rs. '000")

PARTICULARS 2019 - 2020 2018-19
Revenue from Operations 7,53,396.13 6,02,962.80
Other Income 6,782.71 685.31
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 7,60,178.84 6,03,648.11
Exceptional items, and Tax Expense

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 8,869.13 7,549.82
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items, 7,51,309.71 5,96,098.29
and Tax Expense

Less: Finance Costs 5,23.384.34 3,89,976.92
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 2,27,925.37 2,06,121.37
Add/(less): Exceptional items 1,91,525.70 1,03,057.95
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 36,399.67 1,03,063.42
Less: Tax Hxpense (Current & Deferred) 11,493.35 24,515.27
Profit /loss for the year (1) 24,906.32 78,548.15
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) (1,573.13) (550.74)
Total (1+2) 23,333.19 77,997.41
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 2,78,966.42 2,23,592.42
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserves 5,892.97 20,036.90
Less: Transfer to Impairment Reserves 15,537.34 2,586.51
Less: Share issue expenses (net of tax) 1,593.32 -
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares - -
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares - -
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - -
Balance carried forward 2,79,275.98 2,78,966.42

State of Company affairs

Revenues of the Company were up 26% to Rs. 76.01 Cr. (PY Rs. 60.36 Cr.) and PBT decreased 65% to
Rs. 3.64 Cr. (PY Rs. 10.31 Cr.) - and after payment of Rs. 1.15 Cr. (PY Rs. 2.45 Cr.) in current and deferred
taxes and tax on debenture issue expenses, PAT decreased 68% to Rs. 2.49 Cr. (PY Rs. 7.85 Cr.). Under
previous IGAAP tegime, the Company had created a Deferred Tax Liability (DTT.) (PY Rs. 0.40 Cr.) on
the special reserve in line with an opinion from the Expert Advisory Committee (EAC). However, under
Ind AS, the same has been considered to be a permanent difference and thus, the deferred tax on the

special reserve has been derecognized.




In terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions aggregated Rs. 1330.96 Cr. (up 28%
from Rs. 1036.17 Cr. at end of the previous financial vear) — all to lower income, urban families who are
generally excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total loans outstanding figure was Rs. 691.30
Cr. (growth of 21% over Rs. 571.88 Cr. at end of the previous financial year). The Company currently
operates in 7 states — Maharashtra, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Chhattisgarh, and a
recent entry during the year into Tamil Nadu.

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 241 (PY 171) loan accounts as on year end - March 31,
2020 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by
the NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 11.05Cr. (PY Rs. 8.77 Cr.) which was 1.60% (PY
1.53%) of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2020. The Company has created
necessary provisions in accordance with the NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at Rs. 9.10 Cr.
(PY Rs. 7.26 Cr.) and 1.27% (PY 1.32%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2020.

In terms of funding, the Company issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 30
Crs., and with retained profits, net worth increased to Rs. 146.60Cr. (PY Rs. 114.43 Cr.). However, the
Company increased its long-term debt to Rs. 570.17 Cr. (PY Rs. 458.11 Cr.) of which approx. 25%
continues to be refinance support from the NHB. Other lenders to your Company include the largest
nationalized bank, State Bank of India; the leading private sector housing finance provider, HDFC Ltd;
commercial banks such as HDFC Bank Ltd., Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., Yes Bank
Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Federal Bank Limited, Corporation Bank, Karnaraka Bank Ltd., United Bank
of India, Dhanlaxmi Bank Limited, The South Indian Bank I Amited, Andhra Bank Limited and AU Small
Finance Bank Limited; NBFCs such as Tata Capital Financial Services Limited and the leading
development agency, the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”). The Company’s entire loan portfolio
continues to qualify as priority sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). Based on our
excellent relationships with our current bankers and the company’s financial and portfolio performance
we are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with capital adequacy ratio at 36.54% of risk weighted assets, as
against the minimum requitement of 13%.

Change in the nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business during the year.

Share Capital

e The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 318 March 2020 was Rs. 66 Crores. During
the year under review the Company increased the Authorised Capital by addition of 31,00,000
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) amounting to Rs. 31 Crores.

® The paid-up share capital of the Company as on 31 March 2020 was Rs. 60.23 Cr. During the
year under review, the Company has issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
amounting to Rs. 30 Crores through Rights Issue to its Holding Company, M/s Svatantra
Holdings Private Limited details of which are as follows:




Particulars

Ist Tranche

2nd Tranche

3rd T'ranche

Amount

Rs. 10 Crores

Rs. 10 Crores

Rs. 10 Crores

Date of issue

09™ August 2019

09t December 2019

25" February 2020

Date of allotment

161 October 2019

13" February 2020

27t March 2020

Method of
allotment

Rights Issue

Rights Issue

Rights Issue

Issue price

Rs. 100/~

Rs. 100/-

Rs. 100/-

Conversion price

2 CCPS of Rs. 100
each fully paid-up shall
be convertible into 5
Equity  Shares  of
Rs. 10 each fully paid
up (Face value per
Equity  Share of
Rs. 10/- Plus Premium
of Rs. 30/- per share).

2 CCPS of Rs. 100 each
fully paid-up shall be
convertible into 5
Equity  Shares  of
Rs. 10 each fully paid
up (Face value per
Equity Share of Rs.
10/- Plus Premium of

Rs. 30/- per share).

2 CCPS of Rs. 100
each fully paid-up shall
be convertible into 5
Equity  Shares  of
Rs. 10 each fully paid
up (Face value per
Equity Share of Rs.
10/- Plus Premium of
Rs. 30/- per share).

Number of shares
allotted or to be
allotted in case the
right or option is
exercised by all the
holders of
securities.

such

The CCPS shall be
compulsorily

convertible into equity
shares of the Company
in the ratio of 5:2 1.¢. 2
CCPS of Rs. 100 each
fully paid-up shall be
convertible into 5

Equity Shares.

The CCPS shall be
compulsorily
convertible into equity
shares of the Company
in the ratio of 5:2 1.e. 2
CCPS of Rs. 100 each
fully paid-up shall be
convertible into 5
Equity Shares.

The CCPS shall be
compulsorily

convertible into equity
shares of the
Company 1n the ratio
of 5:2 ie. 2 CCPS of

Rs. 100 each fully
paid-up shall be
convertible into 5

Equity Shares.

¢ Variation in the rights of the Preference Shareholders -

i. Type of shareholder — Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shareholder.

ii. No. of shares held by each shareholder — 30,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Preference
Shares (CCPS).

iii. Existing amount per share — Rs. 100 per CCPS.

iv. Type of variation — Variation in the terms of conversion of preference shares into equity shares.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013,

since incorporation.

Business Risk Management

The Company has a well-defined risk management policy and framework in place (which includes
management of credit risk, market risk and operational risk), and has established procedures to periodically
place before the Risk Management Committee, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, the risk
assessment and minimisation procedures being followed and steps taken to mitigate these risks. The Risk
Management Policy is approved annually by the Board of Directors.




Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as

“Annexure A” and is also available on the Company’s website at https://svatantramhfc.com/home.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives

Your Directors confirm that in line with the mandatory requirements of the new Companies Act, your
Company had constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee on March 16 2015 (which was
reconstituted on September 24, 2018 due to the change in the Board of Directors) and has also established

a formal CSR Policy in accordance with the Act.

However, while the CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is
in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of your Company, it is to be noted that the Company has
not spent the required amount per the new Companies Act which has specified that 2% of the average net
profits in the last 3 financial years to be spent on CSR activities. For the year ended March 31, 2020, this
amount was Rs. 24.22 lakhs, and the Company spent Rs. 11.96 lakhs (details per “Annexure B”), which is
a shortfall of Rs. 12.26 lakhs. As per the Companies Act, if the company fails to spend the CSR amount
specified, the Board shall, in its report made under clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134, specify the
reasons for not spending the stated amount. Thus, this is to report that while your Company increased its
CSR spend over last year, it could not spend the specified CSR amount as it was still in the process of
determining specific activities and identifying specific partners that would be aligned with your Company’s
CSR Policy. Your Directors believe that this process should be completed in the coming financial year and
the CSR amount as stipulated by the Companies Act will be spent on qualifying activities accordingly.

The Directors would also like to take this opportunity to reiterate that CSR through financial inclusion has
always been a fundamental part of your Company’s business philosophy and culture. The Company takes
its social responsibilities extremely seriously and in fact was set up in 2008 with the sole social objective of
only helping financially excluded families (typically lower income, informal sector lacking documentation)
in urban India own a home.

Particulars under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013

1. Particulars of Employees:

SMHFC had 281 employees as of March 31, 2020. The Company does not have any employee
whose particulars are required to be furnished under Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

)

Conservation of Energy & Technical Absorption:

The Company is not a manufacturing company, hence, the disclosures pertaining to conservation
of energy and technology absorption stipulated in Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, are

not applicable to your company during the year under review.

3. Foreien Exchange:

During the year under review, there were no foreign exchange earnings. The Company has paid
USD 5000 (Equivalent Rs. 3,59,000/-) as a monitoring fee to the International Finance Corporation
(IFC) the holders of Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) amounting to Rs. 53.10 Crores issued
by the Company.




Dividend

Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and do

not recommend any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report

Due to the pandemic COVID-19, all the field operations of the Company were suspended during the
period of lockdown. In terms of the Reserve Bank of India Circular DOR. No. BP.
BC.47/21.04.048/2019-20 dated March 27, 2020, the Company took the measures to mitigate the
disruptions on account of COVID-19 pandemic and to ensure the continuity of viable businesses, the
borrowers were allowed for moratorium on payment of unpaid instalments, falling due by August 31, 2020.

The management has, at the time of approving the financial statements, assessed the potential impact of
the COVIID-19 on the Company. Barring any future COVID-19 related escalations, based on the current
assessment, the management is of the view that impact of COVID-19 on the operations of the Company
and the carrying value of its assets and liabilities is not likely to be material.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or coutts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and company’s operations in future

There were no significant or material orders passed by any Courts or Regulators or Tribunals during the
Financial Year 2019-20 that, in the opinion of the Board, have an impact on the going concern status and
the operations of the Company in the future.

Compliance of Applicable Laws and Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors hereby declare that the Company is in compliance of the provisions of the

applicable provisions of secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The provisions of Section 186(11) and 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring disclosure of
particulars of the loan given, investments made, and guarantee given, or securities provided are not
applicable to the company.

Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12):

There are no frauds detected by the Auditors which needs to be reported under Section 143(12) of the
Act.

Details of subsidiary/joint venture/associate company

The Company does not have any subsidiary or associate, nor has entered into any joint venture with any
organization.




Reserves

The Company proposes to transfer the entire Profit after Tax amounting to Rs. 2,49.06.320/- to General
pany prop g >

Reserves, out of which further statutory appropriations will be made.

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy was approved by the Board at its Meeting held on 220
October 2014 with effect from 1% January 2015. The main purpose of the Policy is to deal with instances
of fraud and mismanagement, if any, and to protect any person who makes a good faith disclosure of
suspected wrongful conduct or violations of the Company’s Code of Ethics. The Vigil Mechanism/

Whistle Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company at https://svatantramhfc.com/home.

Directors/Key Managerial Personnel

® Re-appointments

Mr. Anil Chirania, Director, retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Mr.
Anil Chirania and Ms. Birla have been in office for the same period and by a mutual agreement amongst
them have decided to nominate Mr. Anil Chirania to retire by rotation. The Board recommends his

reappointment for your approval.

@ Resignations:

There were no resignations during the year under review.
® Appointments:

There were no appointments during the year under review.
® Change in Designation:

Ms. Ananyashree Birla and Mr. Anil Chirania were regularised as Directors at the 11% Annual General

Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2019.

@ Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board conducted a formal annual evaluation
of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors through a structured
questionnaire comprising various criteria broadly based on: (i) Knowledge to perform the role; (i) Time
and level of participation; (itf) Performance of duties and level of oversight; and (iv) Professional conduct.

The reports were scrutinized by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

@ Remuneration Policy
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy
for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management, and their remuneration. The Salient

features of the Nomination & Remuneration Policy are given in “Annexure C”. The complete Policy can

be found at Company’s website at https://svatantramhfc.com/home.




@ Meetings

During the year, 10 Board Meetings, 6 Audit Committee Meetings, 2 Nomination & Remuneration
Committee Meetings and 1 CSR Committee Meeting were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the
same are given in the “Annexure D”.

The 11 Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 30 September 2019 and the 11t 12th 3th,
and 14h Extra-Ordinary General Meeting were held on 24t July 2019, 9 August 2019, 9% December 2019,
and 25" February 2020, respectively.

® Composition of the Committees:
> The Audit Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 24t September 2018. The Members of

the Audit Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mzr. Vineet Chattree
3. Mr. Anil Chirania

> The Nomination and Remuneration was reconstituted by the Board on 24t September 2018. The
Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla

o

Mzr. Vineet Chattree
3. Mr. Anil Chirania

> The CSR Committee was reconstituted by the Board on 24t September 2018. The Members of
the CSR Committee are:

1. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mzr. Vineet Chattree
3. Mr. Anil Chirania

Auditors

M/s Suresh Surana & Associates LLP were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at the
previous Annual General Meeting held on 30% September 2019 for a term of five consecutive years
from the conclusion of the 11% Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 16" Annual General
Mecting of the Company.

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no further
explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report  which require any
clarification/explanation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, we, the Directors of Svatantra Micro Housing
Finance Corporation Limited, state in respect of Financial Year 2019-20 that:




a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial vear and of the profit of the company
for that period;

¢) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all assets and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct ongoing internal audits,
covering all aspects of operations, and adherence to internal policies and procedures as well as to regulatory
and legal requirements. The internal audit reports are reviewed regulatly by the Audit Committee of the
Board, and wherever necessary, internal control systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are

immediately taken.

Regulations

In terms of regulatory requirements, the Company complies with the Housing Finance Companies (NHB)
Directions, 2010 (and updates through circulars) prescribed by the NHB. The Company has issued
comprehensive Know Your Customer (“KYC”) Guidelines and Anti Money Laundering Standards and
adopted the Fair Practices Code framed by the NHB which seeks to promote good and fair practices in
dealing with customers.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy named “Policy Against Sexual Harassment”
in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. A “Complaint Redressal Committee” has been set up to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporaty,
trainees) are covered under this policy.

Under Section 21 of the Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Rules, 2013, the
Annual Report for the calendar year ended 31+ December 2019 was submitted to the Board as well as the

District Officer on January 21, 2020 containing the following information:

1. No. of Complaints received during the yeat:

2

No. of Complaints disposed of during the year:




3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days: NIL

No. of workshops or awareness programs against sexual
harassment carried out:

Ut

Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer: NA

Disclosure on Non-Convertible Debentures

The Company is pleased to report that the International Finance Corporation, which is a member of the
World Bank Group, and the largest global development institution focused exclusively on the private sector
in developing countries, has subscribed to long term Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs”) on Private
Placement basis of Rs. 53.10 Cr issued by the Company under a program to support affordable housing
finance companies that have a focus on small and micro loans.

As per Clause 15 of the Housing Finance Companies Issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private
Placement basis (NHB) Directions, 2014, the Company shall disclose, in a statement, the following:

I The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by the NIL
Investors or not paid by the housing finance company after the date on which the
non-convertible debentures became due for redemption;

2. The total amount in respect of such debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid NIL
beyond the date referred to in clause (1) as aforesaid
Credit Rating

Your Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong Credit ratings assigned by
Rating Agencies during the year under review, as under:

Rati
Instrument atng Rating Amount Remarks
Agency
Lono T Bank Stable
ongTierm DAk | SR ISIL A+ Rs. 550 Crores table
Loan Facilities
Short-Te Deb Stable
rortrerm Debt | oprstn, Al+ Rs. 100 Crores able
Issue
NCD Tssue CRISIL AT Rs. 53.10 Cr. Stable
Long Term  Bank , ,
ongTiemm Bk L - ARE CARE A+ Rs. 350 Cr Stable
Facilities

Related Party Transactions

As per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD
& CEO/2016 dated 9th February 2017, The Board of Directors has adopted the Related Party Transactions
Policy (“RPT”) w.e.f. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on May 29, 2017). The
objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure that transactions between SMHFC and its related parties
are based on principles of transparency and arm’s length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at preventing and providi g guidance in situations of

9




potential conflict of interests in the implementation of transactions involving such related parties. The

Related Party Transactions Policy 1s given in “Annexure E”.

During the year under review the Company has not entered into any transactions/ Contracts with the
related parties falling under the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDAR)

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is presented in “Annexure F”,

which is a part of this report.

Other disclosures:

a)  Your Company has not issued any shares with differential rights or sweat equity shares.
b) There is no revision in the financial statements both standalone and consolidated.

¢} The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company.
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(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20t October 2020
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“Annexure A”

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014.

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:
i CIN U67190MH2008P1.C182274
ii Registration Date 16% May 2008
iii Name of the Company SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE
CORPORATION LIMITED  (erstwhile Micro
Housing Finance Corporation Limited)
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Company having Share Capital
v Address of the Registered Office no. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor, Pushpak CHSIL,,
& contact details Malaviya Road, Vile Parle (east), Mumbai 400 057
Tel No.: +91 22 26101076/ 77/ 78/ 79
vi Whether listed company No
vil Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar | Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
& Transfer Agent, if any. C 101, 247 Park, L. B S Marg,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083
Tel No: +91 22 49186000
I1 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated
SL Name & NIC Code of the % to total turnover
No Description of main Product/ Service of the company
products/services
1 Non-Deposit taking 100%
Housing Finance
Company
II1 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SINo | Name & Address of CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE

the Company

SUBSIDIARY/ | SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
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i Svatantra  Holdings | U67200MH2018PTC309327 | H olding 100% 2(40)
Private Limited
213, 2ad Floor, T. V.
Industrial Fstate, 52,
S.K. Ahire  Marg,
Worli MUMBAI
Mumbai  City  MH
400030 IN
v SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Shareholders the year change
Demat | Physicall Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of |during
Total Total the year
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Central Govt.or 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
State Govt.
c) Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporates
d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 | 0.00
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Any other. .. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding of 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Promoter
A= A)M+A)(2)
B. PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0




b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Central govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fund
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Companies
g) Flls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Capital Funds
i) Othets
- Foreign Trust 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
- Private Equity 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Fund
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 | 0.00
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates
i) Indian 3,02,27,569 0 3,02,27,569 1100.00 |3,02,27,569 0 3,02,27,569 100.00 0.00
if) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals
i) Individual 6 0 6 0.00 6 0 6 0.00 0.00
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1lakh
i) Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1lakh
¢) Others
- Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): |3,02,27,575 0 3,02,27,575 1100.00 |3,02,27,575 0 3,02,27,575 1100.00 0.00
Total Public 3,02,27 575 0 3,02,27,575 |100.00 |3,02,27,575 0 3,02,27,575 {100.00 0.00
Shareholding
(B)= (B)()+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) B,02,27,575 0 3,02,27,575 1100.00 |3,02,27,575 0 3,02,27,575 [100.00 | 0.00

(i)

SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Not Applicable. The Company does not have any Promoter.
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(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Not Applicable. The Company does not have any Promoter.
(iv) | SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,
PROMOTERS & HOLDERS OF GDRs & ADRs)
SL Name Shareholding Date |Increas| Reason | Cumulative Shareholding
No. e/ during the year
Decrea (01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020)
No. of % of se No. of Shates | % of total
shares at total shares of
the shares the
beginning of the Company
of the year | compan
y
1 Svatantra Holdings Private 99.99998 No Change 3,02,27,569 99.99998
Limited 3,02,27.569
2 Akshita Sunil Shah 1 No Change 1] 0.000003
(Nominee of SHPL) 0.0000033
3 Anil Chirania (Nominee of 1 No Change 1} 0.000003
SHPL) 0.0000033
4 Rohit Pathak (Nominee of 1 No Change 11 0.000003
SHPL 0.0000033
5 Suresh Chandra Dad 1 No Change 1] 0.000003
(Nominee of SHPL) 0.0000033
6 Ananyashree Birla 1 No Change 11 0.000003
(Nominee of SHPL) 0.0000033
) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTOR & KMP
SL Name Shareholding Date Increase/ Reason Cumulative Shareholding
No. Decrease during the year
(01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020)
No. of % of total No. of Shares % of total
Shares at shares of shares of
the the the
beginning | Company Company
of the year
1 Is. 1 0.0000033 No Change 1 0.00000331
Ananyashree
Birla
(s nominee  of
Svatantra
Holdings Por.




I.rd.)

2 {r. Anil 1 0.0000033 No Change 1 0.00000331
“hirania
(As nominee  of
Svatantra
Holdings P,
1_1d.) '
\s y INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Unsecured | Deposits Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
deposits
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
1) Principal Amount 4,66,93,22 462 0 0 1 4,66,93.22 462
i1) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
11) Interest accrued but not due 4,47,17,752 0 0 4,47,17,752
Total (i+ii-+iii) 4,71,40,40,214 0 0 | 4,71,4040214
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
Additions - - 0 0
Reduction - - 0 0
Net Change 1,15,29,39,457 0 0 | 1,15,29,39,457
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
1) Principal Amount 5,81,26,70,173 0 0 | 5,81,26,70,173
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
1i1) Interest accrued but not due 5,43,09,498 0 0 5,43,09,498
Total (i+ii+iii) 5,86,69,79,671 0 0 5,86,69,79,671
VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Not Applicable. The Company does not pay remuneration to Managing Director
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Not Applicable. The Company does not pay remuneration to the Directors
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD /
MANAGER/ WID
SL No. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration




1 Gross Salary CEO Tasneem Sahil Mehta - CFO Total
Mandsorwala -
Company Secretary

(@) Salary as per| NA 9,00,000 33,50,000 42,50,000
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites| NA 0 0 0
u/s 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary | NA 0 0 0
under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961
Stock Option NA 0 0 0
Sweat Equity NA 0 0 0
Commission NA 0 0 0
as % of profit 0 0 0
others, specify NA 0 0 0

5 Others NA 0 0 0

Total NA 9,00,000 33,50,000 42,50,000
VII PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of Brief Details of Authority ppeal made
the Description | Penalty/Punishment/Compounding | (RD/NCLT/Court)| if any (give
Companies fees imposed details)
Act, 1956/
2013
A. COMPANY

NIL

B. DIRECTORS

NIL

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Managing Director
(IDIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th October 2020

ficto Housing Finance Corporation Limited

\2Lase

Anil Chirania
" Director
(DIN: 01082719)
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“Annexure B”

A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, includine overview of rojects or programs
) ) g J g

CSR Policy is stated herein below:

Web link:
https://svatantramhfc.com/documents/Corporate®20Information CSR%20Policy®620-
%20 A p1il%201,%20201 9.pdf

The Composition of the CSR Committee (w.e.t. 24.09.2018).

L. Ms. Ananyashree Birla
2. Mr. Vineet Chattree
3. Mr. Anil Chirania

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years
Average net profit: Rs. 12.11 Cr.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above):
The Company is required to spend Rs. 24.22 Lakhs towards CSR.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs. 11.96 Lakhs
(b) Amount unspent: Rs. 12.26 Lakhs
(¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

proposed to be

undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or Programmes

St. | Projects/ Sector Location Amount Amount Cumulative | Amount Spent:
No.| Activities Outlay Spent on Expenditure| Direct or through
the Project | upto the implementing Agency
reporting
period
1. Medical camps Disaster Sangli, Rs. 89,100 Rs.89,100 Rs.89,100 | Doctors for you is a pan
management, | Maharashtra India humanitarian
including relief, organization with
rehabilitation, international presence and is
and working in various disaster
reconstruction hit zones since last 9 years
activities by providing medical care to
the vulnerable communities
during crisis and non-crisis
situation, emergency
medical aid to people
affected by natural disaster,
contlicts and epidemics.
2. | Therapy sessions |Enhancing Mumbat, Rs.2,72,000 | Rs. 2,72,000 Rs. | Ummeed Child
for Children vocation skills | Maharashtra 2,72,000 | Development Centre -
with among works with children and
developmental differently their parents in addressing
disabilities from |abled children issues concerning
low socio- developmental disabilities
among children
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economic

education and
literacy for lower

income families.

socially and
economically
weaker sections

of the society.

backgrounds
3. Medical camps Promoting Ahmedabad,| Rs.1,35,000 Rs.1,35,000 | Rs.1,35,000 | The Desai Foundation is
health care Gujarat now a robust public and
programmatic organization
working to empower
women and children
through health and
livelihood in India and the
U.S
4. UnATHI Reducing the | Tamil Nadu | Rs.7,00,000 Rs.7,00,000 | Rs.7,00,000 | UnATHI Fellowship is a
Fellowship - inequalities program by Indian Housing
Financial faced by

Federation (IHF), where in,

in partnership with
implementing agencies of
State  Governments and
sector

IHF’s

CO-

relevant
stakeholders,

other
Program  Associates
create  and  demonstrate

innovative  and  scalable

development models in
reducing inequalities faced
by

economically

the  socially  and
weaker
sections of the society by
enabling solutions to resolve
the challenges faced by the

low-income housing sector.

TOTAL

Rs. 11,96,100

Rs. 11,96,100

Rs. 11,96,100

(6) A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy,

is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

The implementation and monitoring of SMHFC’s CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and

Policy o

Managing Director & Chair

(DIN: 07962531)
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SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
SALIENT FEATURES OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) POLICY

SCOPE

The CSR Policy applies to the formulation, execution, monitoring, evaluation, and documentation of CSR

activities undertaken by the Company.
OBJECTIVE

The main objective of SMHFC’s CSR policy is
e Tolay down guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the
society (in addition to the social mission of the Company);
® ‘Lo directly/indirectly undertake projects/programs which will enhance the quality of life and
economic well-being of the communities in the society at large;

e To generate goodwill and recognition among all stake holders of the company.
OUR RESPONSIBILITIES
A) Towatrds our Customers
We will build gainful partnerships with the customers to understand their needs and provide right product
and solutions. We will adopt and actively encourage best and fair business practices (FPC code already
developed but this will be stressed given the limited financial education of most of our customers).

B) Towards our Business Partners

We will support our Business Partners to cultivate ethical and fair business practices and give preference

over others to those who demonstrate this.
C) As a Corporate Citizen

We reaffirm our commitment to conduct our business with social and environmental accountability. We
will endeavour to adopt energy efficiency in our operations through waste minimization and water and

energy conservation.
D) Responsibilities toward our Employees

We will foster a work culture with high ethical principles and standards and encourage our employees to
perform with total integrity, commitment, and ownership. We recognise that our employees and investors
deserve to work in safe and healthy work environment and will make it our responsibility to ensure zero

harm to people.




CSR ACTIVITIES

SMHEC shall seek to identify suitable programs / projects / activities as enumerated under Schedule VII
of Companies Act, 2013, during the year to ensure its contribution to the community and society at large.
Our focus will obviously be related to improvement in living conditions as related to housing or support
of institutions working with families in poor housing and financial education as these are very much related
to the mission of SMHFC,

CSR SPEND/SOURCES OF FUNDING

The Annual budget for the CSR Expenditure will be proposed by the CSR committee every year for the
approval of the Board of Directors of the Company & post the Board of Director's approval, the CSR

Expenditure can be incurred by the Company.

The committee shall endeavour to spend at least 2% of the average net profit during the preceding 3

financial years on CSR activities as enumerated above.

Any surplus atising out of the contribution made for CSR activities shall not form part of the business

profit of the Company and will be redeployed for such activities.




“Annexure C”
SVATANTRA MICRO HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Salient Features of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy
Objective of the Policy:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key Objectives of
the Committee would be:
To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.
To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Board.
To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management.
To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their
effort, performance, dedication, and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.
To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

Role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to determine the following:

Appointment criteria and qualifications of Director, KMP and Senior Management;

Term / Tenure of the Directors;

Exvaluation of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel;

Retirement of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel

Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel:

Remuneration to Other employees

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra.Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Managing Director
(DIN:

neet attree

\ 0 L
A g ‘! C‘ - &
Anil Chirania
Director
(DIN: 01082719)

07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20t October 2020

21




""Annexure D"

Disclosures as per the Secretarial Standard - 1

During the Financial Year 2019-20, 10 Board Meetings,
Remuneration Committee and 1 CSR Committee Me

6 Audit Committee, 2 Nomination &
eting were convened and held on the following

dates:

St Board St. | Audit St. ?:;‘;‘r‘i‘r‘;’t‘;‘oi‘ St CSR

No. No. | Committee No. . No. | Committee
Committee

1 26.06.2019 1 26.06.2019 1 30.04.2019 26.06.2019

2 24.07.2019 2 18.09.2019 2 18.09.2019

3 09.08.2019 3 18.11.2019

4 18.09.2019 4 17.01.2020

5 18.11.2019 5 25.02.2020

6 09.12.2019 6 21.03.2020

7 17.01.2020

8 25.02.2020

9 21.03.2020

10 30.03.2020

Attendance of Directors in Board and Committee Meetings:

Number of Meetings Attended:
Sr. Name of the Director Audit Nominatiot} & )
No. Board . Remuneration CSR Committee
Committee .
Committee

1 Ananyashree Birla 2 0 0 0

2 Anil Chirania 10 6 2 1

3 Vineet Chattree 10 6 2 1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Svatantra

Managing Director
(DIN: 0796253 1)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20t October 2020

icro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

\lctio = Vo4

Anil Chirania

Director

(DIN: 01082719)
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“Annexure E»
Related Party Transactions Policy
OBJECTIVE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Svatantra Micro | lousing Finance Corporation (“SMHFC”), had
adopted the following policy (the “policy”) and procedures with regard to Related Party Transactions
(“RPT”) wee.f. June 1, 2017 (duly approved by the Board at its meeting held on May 29, 2017). This policy
is framed as per requirement of the National Housing Bank (NHB) Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-
DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 dated 9 | ‘ebruary 2017. The objective of this policy and procedure is to ensure
that transactions between SMHFEC and its related parties are based on principles of transparency and arm’s
length pricing as provided under the section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. Likewise, this policy aims at
preventing and providing guidance in situations of potential conflict of interests in the implementation of
transactions involving such related parties.

1. DEFINTITIONS:

a) “Audit Committee” means Committee of Board of Directors of SMIFC constituted under Section 177
of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) “Related Party” shall mean a person or entity that is related to the company as defined under Section
2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013.

¢) “Related Party Transaction” shall mean all transactions as defined under section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013

d) “Arm’s Length Transaction” means a transaction between two Related Parties that is conducted as if
they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest (as provided under the section 188 of the
Companies Act 2013).

¢) “Annual Consolidated Turnover” is defined as Total Income (Le. Interest carned plus Other Income)

of the last audited Consolidated Financial Statements of SMHFC.

2. POLICY:
All Related Party Transactions must be referred to the Audit Committee for approval in accordance with
this Policy.

3. IDENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTY AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

A Related Party will be brought to the attention of the Management and the Board/Audit Commitree’s
attention by the Legal and Secretarial Department at least on an annual basis. The Legal and Secretarial
Department needs to inform any change in the Related Party List to Functional teams of SMHFC to

identify the Related Party Transactions.

4. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Every Related Party Transaction shall be subject to the prior approval of the Audit Committee whether
at a meeting or by resolution by way of circulation. Any member of the Audit Committee who has a
potential interest in any Related Party Transaction shall abstain from discussion and voting on the approval

of the related party transaction.

"The approval policy framework is given below:




Audit Committee Board Approval Shareholder's

Approval Approval
e All Related Party ® Related Party Transactions | e Approval by resolution for:
I'ransactions referred by Audit > Related Paty Transactions

Committee for approval of
the Board.
@ Related Party Transactions

not in Ordinary Course of
Business or not on arm's

k length basis and crosses
as required under the 8 o i
. threshold limit as prescribed
statute applicable to

SMHFC. under the Companies Act,

2013 applicable to SMHFC

General Guidance for approval of Related Party Transactions:

The Audit Committee shall be provided with the relevant information of Relared Party Transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder as amended
from time to time or as requested by the Audit Committee. Where a Board approval is required, the
information required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, shall be provided.
In determining whether to approve a Related Party Transaction, the Audit Committee shall consider
(among other aspects it deems relevant), if there are clearly demonstrable reasons from SMHEC’s business
point of view, to enter into a transaction with a Related Party.

5. DECISION REGARDING TRANSACTION IN ORDINARY COURSE OF BUSINESS AND AT
ARM’S LENGTH:

The Audit Committee and the Board shall, after considering the materials placed before them, will judge
if the transaction is in the ordinary course of business and meets the arm’s length requirements.

6. OMNIBUS APPROVAL BY AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
In case of certain frequent/ repetitive/ regular/ transactions/ with Related Parties which are in the ordinary
course of business of SMHFC, the Audit Committee may grant an omnibus approval for such Related
Party Transactions proposed to be entered into by SMHFC. The approval shall be valid for a period of
one year - however the same needs to be ratified by the board at the next board meetng.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED UNDER THIS POLICY:

In the event SMHFC becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction with a Related Party that has not been
approved under this Policy prior to its consummation, SMHFC would obtain post facto approval from
the Audit Committee. In case SMHFEC is not able to take prior approval from the Audit Committee, such
a transaction shall not be deemed to violate this Policy, or be invalid or unenforceable, so long as the
transaction is brought to the Audit Committee as promptly as reasonably practical after it is entered into

or after it becomes reasonably apparent that the transaction is covered by this policy.

The Audit Committee shall consider all of the relevant facts and circumstances regarding the Related Party
Transaction, and shall evaluate all options available to SMHFC, including ratification, revision, or
termination of the Related Party Transaction. In any case, where the Audit Committee determines not to
ratify a Related Party Transaction that has been commenced without approval, the Audit Committee, as




appropriate, may direct additional actions including, but not limited to, immediate discontinuation or
rescission of the transaction. In connection with any review of a Related Party Transaction, the Audit

Committee has authority to modify or waive any procedural requirements of this Policy.

8. DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY:
This Policy will be uploaded on the website of SMHEC at https://svatantramhfc.com home.phg

9. POLICY REVIEW:

This Policy is established w.e.f. June 1, 2017 based on the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per requirement of the NHB Notification No. NHB. HFC. CG-DIR.1/MD & CEO/2016 dated 9
February 2017. In case of any subsequent changes in the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder, the Act and its Rules would prevail over the Policy and the provisions in the Policy would be
modified in due course to make it consistent with law. The Board shall have the right to amend the Policy
from time to time, based on recommendations of Audit Committee. The Policy shall be reviewed every
year along with the other policies of the company. However, it shall be reviewed eatlier if need arises for

the same and/ or under special circumstances, for example a change in law.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantr

W

Vineet Chattree

icro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Anil Chirania
Director

(DIN: 01082719)

Managing Director
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20t October 2020




“Annexure F”

Management Discussion and Analysis Report - FY 2019-20

a) Economy and Housing Finance Sector
The Affordable housing sector in India is supported by factors which are combination of both Market led
aspects as well as Regulatory aspects.

Market Led Aspects and market size

1. Inthelight of the above factors India is the second most populous country with current population
close to 1.33 bn and is urbanizing faster than probably any other large country. This coupled with
declining family size (creation of nuclear families) has catalyzed housing demand. The urban India
has moved from 20% in 1950s to about 35% in 2015 and is likely to reach 50% by 2050, it is
projected that India will have added 416 million urban dwellers compared to 255 million in China
by 2050. Further, the family size has reduced from about 5.5 to 4.8 over last decade.

2. As per the report of the Household Finance Committee, published by the RBI in July 2017, the

;

average Indian houschold holds 78% of its total assets in real estate, which is significantly higher
than other countries such as the US (44%) and Germany (37%) where houscholds hold
substantially more financial assets than their Indian counterparts. This indicates the tendency of
Indian households to own houses.

3. About 41% of the households in India were living in less than 1-room houses and only 53% of the
households were in a good condition. Both these factors imply the significant need for home
improvement and home extension, given the average family size of 4.8,

Driven by the above factors, India faces a significant challenge in terms of creating adequate infrastructure
including housing for all. To put in perspective there is a significant shortage of homes already in urban
India where about 33% of population resides is close to 18.7 million with about 17% population living in
slums. At the same time rural India where majority of 66% resides, the shortage of housing is close to 44
million. About 20 million rural inhabitants staying in thatched roof and 65 million without any permanent
roof.

Of this shortage, economically weaker section (income p.a. upto Rs. 3 Lakh) accounts for close to 50%% in
Urban and about 85% in rural and Low-Income group (income p.a. between 3 Lakh to 6 Lakh) account for
45% in Urban and about 15% in rural India. Given the housing shortage and assuming an average house
price of Rs. 5 Lakh to Rs. 8 Lakh per house and the average housing loan amount at a loan-to-value LTV
of 60-80%, the overall potential market for housing finance in the affordable segment would be Rs. 5.6
trillion to Rs. 12 trillion in the urban segment alone.

Government incentives

- By FY21, the beneficiary under CLSS scheme were close to 1.05 mn., of which about 0.7 mn were
in EWS/LIG and 0.35 mn in MIG segment with interest subsidy release of close to 24,306 Crores.

- Housing sector has been key focus for the current government, which in its previous term
launched many initiatives under its mission of ‘Housing for all by 2022’.

- Enhanced deduction from faxable income on account of interest payment on home loans from Rs.
2 Lakh to Rs. 3.5 Lakh for purchase of home upto Rs. 45 lakhs (before March 20) aim to build
1.95 crore rural houses under PMAY-Gramin,

= Reduction in GST rate on under-construction properties from 8% to 1% in affordable housing

projects (and 12% to 5% in non-affordable) in last fiscal there has been renewed focus on the

sector. >




- All these initiatives combined with implementation of RERA Act 2016 and CLSS (credit linked
savings scheme) started in 2015 for EW'S & LIG and 2017 for MIG has provided significant boom
to the housing sector and mortgage finance providers. The CLSS scheme has already been extended
to March 2020 and it is expected to extend tll 2022 to fulfill the mission of Housing for all by
2022. Further, in order to provide liquidity to financial sector serving the mortgage market Reserve
bank of India (RBI) revised housing loan limit in metropolitan cities from Rs. 28 lakhs to Rs. 35
lakh and Rs. 20 to Rs. 25 lakhs in other cities under PSL (priority sector lending).

Pandemic Impact

The pandemic scenario, ensuing lockdown followed by moratorium period and reverse migration has had
tmpact on the incomes impacting demand, availability of labour impacting supply and also liquidity crunch
impacting the availability of housing finance.

However, slew of support from the government during the pandemic besides providing liquidity support
through NHB, Partial guarantee schemes and TLLTRO there have been some structural reliefs too that were
provided:

1. Relief to Contractors
Contractors have been provided with the extension up to 6 months by all the Central Agencies to fulfill
their obligations of the contracts and agreements. It has also been announced by the Finance Minis try that

there will be a release of the bank guarantees partially by the Government agencies.

This step has been taken by the Government to provide relief to the Contractors who are under strict

obligation to complete their projects, construction work etc.

2. Support to Real Estate projects under RERA

The Finance Ministry has announced the Extension of Registration and Completion date of the Real Estate
projects under RERA by 6 months. There is a huge risk that the timelines might be extended for the
completion of the Projects which would in turn result in the default of the Projects.

Therefore, in view of the same, it has been decided to extend the Registration and Completion date of the
all the registered projects ending on or after 25 March 2020 by 6 months. Furthermore, the regulatory

authorities have the power to extend this time period by extra 3 months.

Also, it has been announced that Ministry of housing and urban A ffairs will advise the regulatory authorities
in States/UTs to consider the Covid-19 situation as Force Majeure under RERA.

b) Change in control

100% ownership of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation (SMHEFC) was acquired by Svatantra
Holding Private Limited through a secondary sale of stake by Promoters and investors in September 2018.
The capital has been invested by Group investment companies in Svatantra Holding Private Limited. The
company 1s now a wholly owned subsidiary of Svatantra Holdings Private Limited. Through this transaction

Ms. Ananyashree Birla is the Chairman of the company.

This change ushers a new chapter providing the patient capital required to continue the vision of company

i.e. to serve the housing finance needs of the underserved/ informal sector in the EWS and LIG segment.

The Management team, processes and product remains same post acquisition. The company post
acquisition had undertaken following key initiatives in FY20:
- Strengthen the Financial control and Internal Audit through dedicated |




- Deepened the existing market in Afjordable Honsing Purchase (AHP) and successfully launched
Benefeciary Led Construction (BLC) product / LAP (Loan against property) / NRP (commercial
property).

©  The disbursements have been 10% to 20° o of the total disbursements.
- Focus on Turnaround time and productivity across the organization.

0 Reduced the TAT from about 25 days to 14 days across the system.
- Opened office in one more state i.c. Tamil Nadu.

¢) Segment-wise or product-wise performance.

SMHFC primarily deals in the segment of providing housing loans for the financially excluded families. In
terms of lending operations, cumulative housing loan sanctions aggregated Rs. 1330.96 Cr (up 28% from
Rs. 1036.17 Cr. at end of the previous financial year) —all to lower income, urban families who are generally
excluded from the mainstream banking sector. The total loans outstanding figure was Rs. 692.36 Cr.
(growth of 21% over Rs. 572.70 Cr. at end of the previous financial vear). The Company currently
operates in 7 states — Maharashtra, Gujarar, Madhya Pradesh, Rajasthan, West Bengal, Tamil Nadu, and
Chhattisgarh.

In terms of portfolio quality, the Company had 241 (PY 171) loan accounts as on vear end - March 31,
2020 - which were classified as non-performing assets (“NPAs”) per the prudential guidelines issued by the
NHB. The amount of such Gross NPAs was Rs. 11.05 Cr. (PY Rs. 8.77 Cr.) which was 1.60 % (PY 1.53%)
of the total loan portfolio of the Company as at March 31, 2020. The Company has created necessary
provisions in accordance with the NHB Directions, after which Net NPAs stood at Rs. 9.10 Cr. (PY Rs.
7.26 Cr.) and 1.27% (PY 1.32%) of the total loan portfolio as at March 31, 2019.

In terms of funding, the Company raised fresh equity during the year of Rs. 30 Cr. and with retained profits,
net worth increased to Rs. 146.60 Cr. (PY Rs. 114.43 Cr.). However, the Company increased its long-term
debt to Rs. 570.17 Cr. (PY Rs. 458.11 Cr.) of which approx. 25% continues to be refinance support from
the NHB. Other lenders to your Company include the largest nationalized bank, State Bank of India; the
leading private sector housing finance provider, HDFC Ltd; commercial banks such as HDFC Bank 1.td.,
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd., DCB Bank Ltd., Yes Bank Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Corporation Bank
and Federal Bank 1 Amited; NBECs such as Tata Capital Financial Services Limited and the leading
development agency, the International Finance Corporation (“IFC”). The Company’s entire loan portfolio
continues to qualify as priotity sector as defined by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”). Based on our
excellent relationships with our current bankers and the company’s financial and portfolio performance we
are confident of arranging additional debt to cover projected growth plans.

The Company is very well capitalised with capital adequacy ratio at 36.54% of risk weighted assets, as
against the minimum requirement of 13%,

Customer segment break up:

Customer Segment No. of Loans Principal O/S %o
Salaried 7,807 249.02 35.97%
Self Employed 7,220 270.63 39.09%
Both 4,125 171.76 24.81%
Builder Loan 3 0.95 0.14%
Grand Total 19,155 692.36 100.00%‘J




d) Improvement in Credit Rating

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited is amongst the few entities in the NBFC/ HFC
space which has been upgraded by CARE and sustained by CRISIL at A+. This is a recognition of the

Governance, Fiscal prudence, and Parentage.
e) Outlook

Given the pandemic scenario and likely lockdown and ensuing impact on demand, supply of housing units

coupled with liquidit}' challenge - Next year in terms of growth remains a challcnge on many fronts:

(1) Liquidity and interest rate risk

Being a financial organisation, SMHFC is susceptible to market-related risks such as liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and funding risk. Such risk management relating to maturity mismatch of assets and liabilities,
interest rate gaps/ sensitivity is assigned to the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to monitor these risks
on an ongoing basis. Being in a long-term funding business SMHFC maintains adequate balances of
undrawn lines and cash equivalents for disbursements, repayments, and other payments. This risk is
accentuated by extension of moratorium and limited

(1) Operational risk

SMHFC uses information technology extensively in its operations. The Company attempts to mitigate
operational risk by maintaining a system of internal controls, establishing systems and procedures to
monitor transactions, extensive employee training, maintaining key back-up procedures, undertaking

regular contingency planning.

(i) Credit Risk

The Company manages credit risk by using a set of credit norms and policies, including a standard credit
appraisal policy. All functions of credit are managed in house right from sourcing, verification, credit
bureau checks. SMHFC has developed internal legal and technical evaluation team with independent
function to make credit decisions more robust and in line to manage collateral risk.

Credit risks are minimized by having established credit appraisal system in place, prescribing exposure
limits, periodic review of the portfolio. SMHFC performs credit bureau checks, field verification, stringent
legal and technical due diligence etc. which have helped to reduce delinquencies. The recovery mechanism
is now well established through recourse under the SARFAESI Act.

f) Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all assets and ensure
operational efficiency. The Company also has an internal auditor to conduct ongoing internal audits,
covering all aspects of operations, and adherence to internal policies and procedures as well as to regulatory
and legal requirements. The integrated Loan Management System and the Accounting System has inbuilt
maker checker systems in place for recording, authorising transactions on the system. The internal audit
reports are reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee of the Board, and wherever necessary, internal

control systems are strengthened, and corrective actions are tmmediately taken.
g) Accounting Policy Changes

The company has adopted Ind AS accounting methodology as per the required statute for the Fiscal 2019-
20. In line with the requirement while adopting the change in accounting standards, the company had recast
the financial statements of the Fiscal 2018-19 as the opening year while adoptjng the same for the Fiscal

2019-20
-




h) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.

During the year, the sanctions in number terms were 5352 (PY 4007) in value terms were Rs. 294.78 Crores
(PY Rs. 235.00 Crores). The disbursements grew by 4.5 % to Rs. 237.10 Crores (PY Rs. 226.82 Crores).
This led to an increase in the loan book by 20.89% to Rs. 692.36 Crores. (PY 572.70 Crores).

Revenues of the Company were up 26 % to Rs. 76.01 Cr. (PY Rs. 60.36 Cr.) and PBT decreased 65% to
Rs. 3.64 Cr. (PY Rs. 10.31 Cr.) - and after payment of Rs. 1.15 Cr. (PY Rs. 2.45 Cr.) in current and deferred
taxes and tax on debenture issue expenses, PA'T decreased 68% to Rs. 2.49 Cr. (PY Rs. 7.85 Cr.). Under
previous IGAAP regime, the Company had created a Deferred Tax Liability (DTL) (PY Rs. 0.40 Cr.) on
the special reserve in line with an opinion from the Expert Advisory Committee (EAC). However, under
Ind AS, the same has been considered to be a permanent difference and thus, the deferred tax on the

special reserve has been derecognized
i) Human Resource Development

The company believes that Human resource development is vital for effective implementation of business
plans and philosophy of the Company. The company has enhanced its human resource base accompanied
by creating a new Training department to insttutionalize induction as well as refresher training

programmes.

Employees were also nominated for training programmes conducted by the NHB and other institutions.
The manpower requirement in the company is assessed continuously and recruitment is conducted through
campus placements and lateral hires. The Company has a dedicated team of 281 employees as of March
31, 2020, who have been contributing to the progress and growth of the Company.

j) Values of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

The company re-defined its integral value which are: Integrity, Trust, Customer Centricity, Passion,
Innovation and Teamwork. These values remain underlying chord that joins all 281 of us to serve a
common objective which is to serve the housing finance needs of the underserved informal segment in
the country.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatangra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Anil Chirania
Director
(DIN: 01082719)

Managing Director
(DIN: 07962531)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 204 October 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,

The Members of

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance
Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “ Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015
as amended (“Ind AS”) and other the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31 March 2020, the profit including other comprehensive income, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 39 of the Ind AS financial statements which describe the management's
assessment of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the financial result of the Company and estimates
related to impairment of assets, which are dependent on future developments regarding the severity and
duration of the pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
1 Transition to Indian Accounting Standards | Principal Audit Procedures

(“Ind AS”)

We have performed the following audit
The Company has adopted Ind AS notified | procedures in order to obtain sufficient audit
under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 | evidence:
("the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian |
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as - Assessed the Companys process to
amended, from 01 April 2019 and the effective identify the impact of adoption and
date of such transition is 01 April 2018. transition to the new accounting standards;
Ind AS is new and complex accounting - Evaluated the design of intemal controls
standards  which  require  considerable and tested the operating effectiveness of
judgment and interpretation in its key internal controls around the process of
implementation. Further, Ind AS 101 (“First- preparation of Ind AS financial statements;
time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards”) allows two categories of - Reviewed the exemptions availed by the |
exceptions to the first-time adopters which Company from certain requirements under |
mainly include prohibition to retrospective Ind AS;
application of certain requirements of Ind AS
and exemption from some requirements of Ind - Obtained an understanding of the |
AS. We consider this transition and the governance over the determination of key |
required disclosure to be a key audit matter judgments;
because new accounting policies have been {
developed by the Company to comply with - Evaluated and tested the key assumptions
these standards and judgment. Note 2 and judgments adopted by management;
“Significant Accounting Policies”, Note 43
First-time adoption of ind AS, Note 37.2 “Fair - Assessed the disclosures made against the s
value hierarchy” and Note 38 “Risk relevant ind AS; and
management” to the Ind AS financial
statements provide detailed information on the - Determined the appropriateness of the
significant policies, critical judgment and methodologies and models used along wnth |
estimation along with details of exemptions the responsibility of the outputs. i
applied from certain requirements under Ind
AS based on which these Ind AS financial
statements are prepared. Accordingly, it was
determined to be a key audit matter in our ;
audit of the Ind AS financial statements. |

2 impairment of loans

Recognition and measurement of impairment
of loans and advances involve significant
management judgement.

Under Ind AS 109, Financial instruments,
allowance for loan losses are determined
using expected credit loss (ECL) model. The
Company’s impairment allowance is derived

from estimates including the historical da

et

Principal Audit Procedures

Our key audit procedures included:

Evaluation of the appropriateness of the 1
impairment principles used by |
management based on the requirements |
of Ind AS 109, our business |
understanding and industry practice.




and loss ratios. Management exercises
judgement in determining the quantum of loss
based on a range of factors.

The most significant areas are:

- Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk

(‘'SICR’) and ‘default’ categories);

-Grouping  of borrowers based on
homogeneity by using appropriate statistical
techniques;

- Determination of exposure at default

- Calculation of probability of default / loss
given default

- Consideration of probability weighted
scenarios and forward looking macro-
economic factors.

The application of ECL model requires several
data inputs.

This increases the risk of completeness and
accuracy of the data that has been used to
create assumptions in the model.

Additional considerations on account of
COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health
Organisation declared the Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) outbreak to be a pandemic.

We have identified the impact of and
uncertainty related to the COVID 19 pandemic
as a key element and consideration for
recognition and measurement of impairment
of loans and advances on account of;

- Short and long term macro economic effect
on businesses in the country and globally and
its consequential first order and cascading
negative impact on revenue and

employment generation opportunities.

- Impact of the pandemic on the Company's
customers and their ability to repay dues; and

- Application of regulatory package
announced by the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI} on asset classification and provisioning.

Management has conducted a qualitative
assessment of significant increase in credit
risk (SICR) of the loan portfolio with respect to
the moratorium benefit to borrowers
prescribed by the RBI and considered
updated macroeconomic scenarios and the

Understanding management's revised
processes, systems and  controls
implemented in relation to impairment
allowance process, particularly in view of
COVID-19 regulatory package.

Evaluating management's controls over
collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for management
overlays on account of COVID-19.

Assessing the design and implementation
of key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge.

Using our modelling specialist to test the |
model methodology and reasonableness
of assumptions used, including
management overlays.

Testing of review controls over |
measurement of impairment allowances
and disclosures in Ind AS financial
statements.

Assessing the appropriateness  of
management rationale for determination
of criteria for SICR considering both:
adverse effects of COVID 19 and
mitigants in the form of the RBI /
Government financial relief package.

Assessing the  appropriateness  of
changes made in macro economic factors
and management overlays to calibrate the
risks that are not yet fully captured by the |
existing model.

Corroborate through independent check
and enquiries the reasonableness of
management's assessment of grading of
severity of impact of COVID-19 on
segments of its loan porffolio and the |
resultant impairment provision computed.

Focus on appropriate application of
accounting principles, validating
completeness and accuracy of the data |
and reasonableness of assumptions used |
in the model. }

|

Test of details over of calculation of
impairment allowance for assessing the |
completeness, accuracy and relevance of |
data. !




use of management overlays to reflect !

potential impact of COVID-19 on expected - Model calculations testing through re-
credit losses on its loan portfolio. performance where possible.

- The appropriateness of management’s
judgments was also independently
reconsidered in respect of calculation |
methodologies, segmentation, economic |
factors, the period of historical loss rates
used and the valuation of recovery
assets.

- Assessing the factual accuracy and
appropriateness of the additional Ind AS
financial statements disclosures made by
the Company regarding impact of COVID-
19.

3 IT systems and controls

Financial accounting and reporting processes, | Principal Audit Procedures
especially in the financial services sector, are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and IT | Qur key audit procedures included:
controls to process significant transaction

volumes, hence we identified IT systems and - We tested the design and operating
controls over financial reporting as a key audit effectiveness of the Company’s IT access
matter for the Company. controls over the information systems that |
are important to financial reporting and |
Automated accounting procedures and IT various interfaces, configuration and otherl
environment controls, which include IT identified application controls.
governance, general IT controls over program ;
development and changes, access to - We tested IT general controls (logical |
programs and data and IT operations, are access, changes management and
required to be designed and to operate aspects of IT operational controls). This |
effectively to ensure reliable financial included testing requests for access to |
reporting. systems were reviewed and authorized.

- We tested the Company’s periodic review
of access rights. We also tested requests
of changes to systems for approval and
authorisation.

- In addition to the above, we tested the
design and operating effectiveness of
certain automated controls that were
considered as key internal controls over
financial reporting.

Information Other than the Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report and
Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind




AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements |,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Board of Directors.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Ind AS
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at 01 April 2018 included in these Ind AS financial statements,
are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Accounting Standards Specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there
under and other accounting principles generally accepted in India audited by predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 dated 26 June 2019 and 6 June 2018,
respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have
been audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our




b)

c)

a)

h)

SPTOE

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as, it appears from our examination of those books;

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid or provided remuneration to its directors during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements (Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 121750W/W-100010

Ram

Partner
Membership No.: 102306

UDIN: 20102306AAAACX1625 charteréd

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 August 2020
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

of our report of even date)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property plant and equipment.

(b) The Property plant and equipment have been physical verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the erstwhile
name of the Company.

The Company is a Housing Finance Company, primarily engaged in the business of lending activities
for housing purpose and does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii))(b) and 3(ii))(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any transaction covered under Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act 2013. Accordingly.
The provisions of Clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed thereunder apply.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government
has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities with slight delays in certain cases. There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues
as at the 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

{b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no dues on account of sales
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and
cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except the following:

Name of the Nature of the | Period to Amount Forum where |
statute dues which the { Rs.’000) dispute is
amount relates pending
Income Tax Act, | Demand of | Assessment 11,380 | Commissioner  of
1961 income tax Year 2017-2018 Income Tax
(Appeals)




(viii)

(ix)

()

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks, financial institutions or debentures holders.
Further, the Company has not taken any loan or borrowing from government.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
Debt Instruments). Based on the information and explanations given to us, the term loans obtained
during the year have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained except in one case
having the facts that pending utilization of the funds of Rs. 2.94 crores (out of Rs. 30 crores) raised
through term loans for the stipulated purpose and stipulated timelines, the idle funds which were not
required for immediate utilization have been temporarily invested in fiquid investments, payable on
demand but were ultimately utilized for the stated end use.

To the best of knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees have been noticed or reported
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid/provided for managerial remuneration during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934. However, the Company has registered with Reserve Bank of India as housing finance company.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 121750W/W-100010

Ram
Partner
Membership No.: 102306

-

Gupta

UDIN: 20102306AAAACX1625 [ chanerdd

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 August 2020

Accouiitants




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Svatantra Micro Housing Finance
Corporation Limited as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind
AS Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial confrol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to further periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No. 121750W/W-100010

-

Rame’ ta

Partner

Membership No.: 102306 )
UDIN: 20102306 AAAACX1625 : Chartared

accoantanis

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 August 2020




To,

The Board of Directors

Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)
Office No. 1,2,3,4, Ground Floor,

Malviya Road, Vile Parle (East)

Mumbai - 400057

Independent Auditor's Additional Report for the year ended 31 March 2020, pursuant to the
requirements of the Master Circular-Housing Finance Companies—Auditor's Report (National
Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the National Housing Bank

1. This report has been issued in accordance with our terms of engagement letter dated 10 October
2019 with Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited (“the Company”) and in accordance
with the requirements of the Master Circular- Housing Finance Companies —Auditor's Report
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 (the Auditor's Report Directions’) issued by the National
Housing Bank (‘NHB').

2. We have audited the accompanying audited Ind AS financial statements of the Company which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the Statement of Profit and loss including Other
Comprehensive Income , the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for
the year then ended and notes to the Ind AS financials statements including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and have issued an unqualified opinion vide
our Audit report dated 19 August 2020.

In addition to the said report made under Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) on the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 and as required by
the requirements of the Master Circular- Housing Finance Companies —Auditor's Report (National
Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 (the Auditor's Report Directions’) issued by the National Housing
Bank ('NHB'), we report on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Directions, to the
extent applicabie, as follows:

Management’s and Those Charged with Governance’s Responsibility for the financial statements

3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
Comprehensive Income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with




the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

4. The Management of the Company is also responsible for Compliance with the National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 (‘the NHB Act’), Master Circular =The Housing Finance Companies Directions, 2010 ('the
NHB Directions’), and other circulars and directions issued by the NHB there under and for providing
all the required information to the NHB. Further, the Company is responsible for compliance of RBI
circular or guidelines, wherever applicable.

Auditors Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Auditor's Report Directions, it is our responsibility to provide
reasonable assurance on the matters specified in paras 3 and 4 of the Auditor's Report Directions, to
the extent applicable to the Company, on the basis of our audit of the financials statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 and examination of books of account and other records
maintained by the Company for the year then ended.

6. We conducted our examination in respect of this certificate in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical
requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control
(SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and Other Assurance and Related and Related Services Engagements, issued by ICAl

Opinion

Based on our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and examination as
above, evidences obtained and the information and explanations, along with the representations
provided by the Management, we report that

1. Para 3 (A)

a. The Company has obtained Certificate of Registration No. 02.0071.09 dated 9 February 2009
issued by the New Delhi Regional office of the NHB. Further, the Company has been allotted the
certificate of registration No DOR -00071 dated 12 February 2020 in lieu of aforesaid registration
issued by NHB;

b. The Company is meeting the required Net Owned Fund Requirements during the year ended 31
March 2020 as prescribed under section 29A of the NHB Act;
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2. Para 3 (B)

As indicated in Clause (1) above, since the Company has Certificate of Registration as Housing
Finance Company and not accepting /holding public deposits, the matters referred to in Para 3(B) of
the Directions are not applicable to the Company.

3. Para 3 (C)

i) The Company has complied with the provisions of section 29C of the NHB Act with respect to the
statutory reserves during the year ended 31 March 2020;

ii) The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 29 May 2017 has passed a
resolution for non acceptance of any public deposits;

li) The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2020;

iv) The total borrowings of the Company are within the limits prescribed under paragraph 3(2) of the
NHB directions during the year,

v) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to the income recognition,
accounting standards, assets classification, disclosure on balance sheet, provisioning norms, loan-
to-value ratio, investment in real estate, exposure to capital markets and engagement of brokers and
concentration of credit/investments as specified in the NHB Directions as may be applicable for the
year ended 31 March 2020;

vi) The Capital Adequacy Ratio as at 31 March 2020 as disclosed in the Schedule |l return submitted
to NHB in terms of the NHB Directions on 15 June 2020 was correctly determined and this ratio is in
compliance with the minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR’) prescribed therein;

vii) The Company has furnished to the NHB the Schedule-Il return during the year ended 31 March
2020 within the stipulated period as specified in the NHB Directions except for Schedule 1l return for
the half year ended 31 March 2020. This return was submitted 3 days later than due date on account
of technical difficulties with NHB portal and the same was informed to the NHB on the due date of
filling of return;

viii) The Company has furnished to the NHB the Schedule —lIl Return on Statutory Liguidity Assets
to the NHB for the year ended 31 March 2020 within the stipulated period as specified in the NHB
Directions;

ix) In case of opening of new branches/offices or in the case of closure of existing branches/offices,
the Company has complied with the requirements of the NHB Directions for the year ended 31
March 2020; and

x) The Company has complied with the provisions contained in paragraph 38 and 38A of the NHB
Directions for the year ended 31 March 2020;

Restrictions on Distribution or Use

8. Our work was performed solely to assist you for compliance with Auditor's Report Directions by the
Company. Our Obligations in respect of this report are entirely separate from, and our responsibilities
and liabilities is in no way changed by any other role we may have as statutory auditors of the
Company or otherwise. Nothing in this report, nor anything said or done in the course of or in
connection with the services that are subject of this report, will extent any duty of care we may have
in our capacity as statutory auditors of the Company.
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9. This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to
our obligations under the Auditor's Report Directions requiring us to submit on the additional matters
as stated in the aforesaid directions, and should not be used, referred to or distributed for any other
purpose or to any other person without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Suresh Surana & Associates & LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 121750W/W-100010

Rame upta

Partner

Membership No.: 102306
UDIN: 20102306 AAAACX 1625

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 August 2020



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Amount in Rs. 000"}

. Asat As at As at
Note no. 5
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018

Assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 103,923 76 48,370 22 203,111.64
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 209814 41 1042337 10,640 38
Loans 5 6.883.227.09 5.689,074.00 4.526.941.04
Other financial assets 6 3.521.11 3,305.53 2.875 94
Total financial assets 7.202,286.37 3,751,173.12 4,743,567.20
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 7 351163 5,563.54 7,062 89
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 27.829.65 27,051.31 22,6355
Investment property 9 250.71 250.71 250.71
Property, plant and equipment 10 3.166.25 445555 1.481 82
Other Intangible asscts 10 116,77 31561 -
Rught of use asset 11 5,505.63 10,020.36 11.635.96
Other non-financial assets 12 8.132.39 4.646.93 7.501.47
Total non-financial assets 48,513.05 52,304.01 50.588.60
Total assets 7,250,799.42 5.803.477.13 4,794,1535.80
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables

Trade pavables

- Total outstanding dues of nucro enterprises and small enterprises 13 82.08 - =

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13 4,021.13 888 03 1,078 28

Other payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 14 2,539.55 1,194 41 1,293.27
Debr secunities 15 52630097 525,540.72 262 447 98
Borrowings (other than debt secunties) 16 5.175.419.99 4.055574.05 3,458,533 29
Other financial habilities 7 60,952 40 60,803.20 58.398.15
Total financial liabilities 5,769.315.92 4.650,000.99 3,781,750.97
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 18 10,973.18 5,607.27 4,599.87
Other non-financial habilities 19 4.460.86 3.559.27 348412
Total non-financial liabilities 15.434.04 9,166.54 10,083.99
Total liabilities 5,784,749.96 4,689,167.53 3.791,834.96
Equity
Equity shave capital 20 302,275.75 302,275.73 251,784 40
Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares 21 300,000.00 - -
Other equity 22 863,773.7 842.033.83 750,536.44
Total equity 1,466,049.46 1,14:4,309.60 1,002,320.84
Total liabilities and equity 7,250,799.42 5,803,477.13 4,794.155.80
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010

Vi

Partner

et Cha

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housmg Finance Corporanon Limired

AL

Anil Chirania

o~

NManaging Director
DIN: 17962531

< osness”

Tasneem Mandsorwala

Membership No: 102306
Place: Mumbai

Pate:{q Mau{- doie

Director
DIN: 01082719

Sahil Mehta

Chief Fmnaneial Officer

Company Secretary
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Date: 19 Auvgust 2020




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020
{Amount in Rs. '000")

Note no Year ended Year ended
' ’ 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
Interest income 23 737,893 15 586,405.70
Fees and commission mcome 24 - 37429
Net gain on fair value changes 25 15.502.98 16,182 81
Total revenue from operations 753,396.13 602,962.80
Other income 26 6,782.71 685 31
Total income 760,178.84 603,648.11
Expenses
Finance costs 27 523,384 34 389.976.92
Impairment on financial instruments 28 5.671.42 (10,380.97)
Emplovee benefits expense 29 130.347.76 75.183.52
Depreciation and amortisation 30 8.869.13 7.549.82
Other expenses 31 55.506.52 38.255.40
Total expenses 723,779.17 500,584.69
Profit before tax 36,399.67 103,063.42
Tax expense:
- Current tax 33 11,340.92 28.704.56
- Deferred tax 33 152.43 (4.189.29)
11,493.35 24.515.27

Profit after tax 24,906.32 78,548.15
Other comprehensive income
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (cost) (2,102.22) (777.01)
(11) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassitied to profit or loss 52909 22627
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax (1.573.13) (550.74)
Total comprehensive income 23,333.19 77,997.41
Earnings per share 34
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) (Nominal Value - Rs. 10) 0.78 260
Diluted earnings per share (Rs ) (Nominal Value - Rs. 10) 078 2.60
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanving notes form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Firm Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010

i A,LQ Clicaa

Rames!

Partner Vineet Chattree Anil Chirania
Membership No. 102306 Managing Director Director
Place: Mumbai DIN: 07962531 DIN: 01082719

: e €N
Tasneem Mandsorwala
Company Secretary /
Membership No: A34613
Place: Mumbai

Deer 1 &ua.i-ks't 0

Date iq f\ua“s.t- QD{O

Sahil Mehta
Chief Financial Officer



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 Mar 2020
( Amount in Rs, '000")

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit before tax 36,399.67 103,063 42
Cash flow from operating activities
Adjusted ftor
Finance costs on lease habihities 841.12 1.081.53
Transaction costs on borrowings (1.914.03) 2.103.77
Gain on sale of mutual fund units held as current investments (13,302.98) (16,182.81)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 8.869.13 7.549.82
Interest on fixed deposits and Inter Corporate deposits (15,170.61) (3,677.32)
Impairment on financial instruments (3.671.42) 10.380.97
I'ransaction costs on Loans 14,880.50 21,398.79
Unwinding interest income (198.59) (198.35)
Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 522 30.29
Operating profit before working capital changes 22.544.01 125,550.11

Changes in working capital
- {Increase) / decrease in loans

(1.203.368 17)

(1.129.921.37)

- {Increase) / decrease in other financial Assets (1,816.99) (233.24)
= {Increase) / decrease in other non financial Assets (8,642.72) (4.380.80)
- Increase / (decrease) in trade pavables 4,559.52 (28851)
- (Increase) / decrease in other financial Liabilities (1.516.22) 9.319.50
- (Increase) / decrease in other non financial Liabilities 901.39 (1,924.85)
- Increase / (decrease) in provisions 3.263.69 23039
Cash generated from operating activities (1,184,075.29) (1.001,648.77)
Income tax paid (net) (9.289.03) (27.205.21)
Net cash used in operating activities (1,193,364.32) (1.028,853.98)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property. plant and equipment, right of use asset and intangibles

Proceeds from sale of property. plant and equipment
Purchase of mutual funds
Proceeds of sale of mutual funds

(1,822.39)
15.08

(33.856,300.00)
33.871,802.98

(5,700.52)
23.82

(44.885.800.00)
4490198281

Interest received on fixed deposits and Inter Corporate deposits 3279357 3.340.95
Maturity /(investments) of /in fixed deposits (187.500.00) 553.58
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (170,524.76) 14,400.64

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of Compulsorily convertible preference shares

Share issue expenses

Proceeds from issue of debentures
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Proceeds from short borrowings (net)

300,000.00
(1.995.00)
2.350.000.01
1.321.722.51)
99.400 00

(

266.000.00
1.187.500.00
(588,234 96)

Repayment of lease habilities (3.398.76) (4.471.59)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (841.12) (1,081.53)
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,419,442.62 859,711.92

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 55,553.54 (154,741 42y
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 48,370 22 203.111.64

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 103.923.76 48,370.22

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 19536 1,078 41

Balances with banks

- With banks in current accounts 103.728 40 47,291 .81

Cash and cash equivalents 103,923.76 48,370.22




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 Mar 2020
Cash Flow Statement (Contd..)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance (Borrowings + debt securities +lease habilities) 4.591.088.94 3.731.869 98
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2.350,000.01 1,187.500.00
Rapyment /( addition ) in lease labilities (net) (3493 00) 167.00
Finance costs on lease liabilities (841.12) (1.081.52)
Proceeds from debt securities - 26600000
Proceeds from short borrowings (net) 99 400.00 -
Repayments of leng-term borrowings (1,321,722.51) (588,234 96)
Transaction costs on borrowings (7.071.29) (3.131.56)
Closing balance (Borrowings) 5,707,361.03 4,591,088.94
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Firm Registration No.: 121750W/W-100010
~ CLV:Q.—-‘Q
RameSly Gupta Af‘l
Partner Vimkeet CRattree Anil Chirania
Membership No.. 102306 Managing Director Director

Place: Mumbai

Date: {q &uau{-'{a s

DIN: 07962331
m
oA

Tasneem Mandsorwala / Sahil Mehta
Company Secretary / Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A34613

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19 August 2020

DIN: 01082719




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

Equity share capital

(Amount in Rs "000")

Particulars

No of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2018 25179414 25178440
Adjustments related to Company's Emplovees Trust 5.048.161 3049133
Balance at 31 March 2019 30,227,575 302,275.75
Addition duning the vear - 4
Balance at 31 March 2020 30,227,575 302,275.78

Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

(Amount i Rs {1y

Particulars

No of shares

Amount

Balance as at | April 2018
Addition dunng the vear

Balance at 31 March 2019

Addition during the sear

3000, (1)

300,000 00

Balance at 31 March 2020

3.000,000

300,000.00

Other equity

(Amount in Rs 0007

Reserves and Surplus

Particulars N . F
Securlllwc STkt reEe Impairment Retaiiiéd Eiriings Total
premium ° reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2018 43160551 95,338.51 - 123,592.42 750,536.44
Profit for the year - - - ELREE R 78548 15
Other comprehensive income for the vear - - (550.74) {330 74)
Adiustments related to Company's Employees Trust 13,500 00 * = 13.500.00
Transfer from / to retamed camings - 2004 2586351 (2,606 53) =
Balance as at 31 March 2019 445.105.51 95.358.55 2.586.51 208,983.28 842,033.85
Profit for the year - - - 24,906 32
Other com hensive income for the year = - = 3 (L.5373.13)
Transfer from / to retamed cammgs - 3X0297 1553734 (Z1.43031) =
Share 1ssuc expenses = - - (1.593.52) (1.59332)
Balance at 31 March 2020 445,105.51 101,251.52 18.123.85 299,292.84 863.773.72

Summany of Signiticant accounting policies - refer note 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chanered Accountants
Firm

cistration Noo 121750WAV-100010

Rames|
Partner
Membership No - 102306
Place: Mumba

Pae i \u‘tlg&s".lp{-b

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

L

ACcasa

Vincet Chattree
Managing Director
DIN 674962531

m"«?m

Tasneem Mandsorwala
Company Sc:

fany

Membership No: A34613

Place: Mumbai
Date 19 August 2020

Anil Chirania
Dircetor
DIN: 01082719

Sahil Mchia
Chief Financial Officer




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited

{Formerly known as Micro Housir

Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

[

Corporate Information

Svatanua ro Hou: Finance Corporation Limited ("SMHFC or “the Compam ™) was incorporated on 16 May 2008 with the abjective to provide housing finance for financially
excluded familics. particularky lower income informal sector houscholds. The Company was registered with National Housing Bank ("NHB") as housing linance compamy . However,
vide cernficate of registration dated 12 Februre 2020, the Compamy 15 also registered with the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") as a housing finance compamy The Companm 1s
domiciled n Indra and its registered office is siated at Office no. 1.2.3.4, Ground Floor, Pushpak Co-operative Housing Society Lid - Malaviva Road. Vile Parle (East). Mumbai -
400 057, Maharashtra, India. The Company is wholh: owned subsidian of $vatantra Holdings Private Lunited

&

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements (“the Financial Statements™) have been prepared i accordance with the Indian Accounung Standards (*Ind AS') as notified by Munstry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA") under Seetion 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (*Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounung Standards) Rules. 2015, (as amended trom ume o ume) and
other relevant provisions of the Act. Any application guidance clarifications/ directions issucd by Reserve bank of India and National Housing Bank or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable. The Company has uniformly applicd the accounting policics for all the periods presented m this financial statements

The financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements which has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines
by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI') and National Housing bank (NHB). wherever applicable

The financial statements upto and for the vear ended March 31. 2019 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standard notificd under Secuon 133 of the Act. read together
with paragraph 7 of the Compames (Accounts) Rules. 2014 (Previous GAAP) and other apphicable guidehnes issued by the RBI or /and NHB. which have been adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopled by the Company on transition 1o Ind AS

As these are the Company”’s first financial statements prepared i accordance with Ind AS. the Company has applied. First-ume Adoption Standard (Ind AS 101) of Indian Accounting
Standards. An explanation of how the transition te Ind AS has allected the previoush reported financial position. financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided m
Note 43

s and liabilities and on the basis of accounting principles of

The financial statements have been prepared on a lustonical cost convention and accrual basis, except for the following ass:
a going concern i accordance with generally accepted accounting principle (GAAP}

i} Certain financial assets and habihities that are measured at faw value

i) Defined benefit plans. and related -plan assels measured at fair value using actuanial valuation

The financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020 were awthorised and approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on |9 August 2020

Significant accounting poli

a. Functional and presentation currency
These linancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR” or “Rs ) which is also the Company’s functional currency . All amounts are rounded-ofT to the nearest thousands and
decumals thereof unless otherwise indicated

b. Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid 1o iransfer a lability i an orderly wansaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the habihity takes place cither

In the principal market for the assetor liabilaty. or
In the absence of o principal market. m the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fair value of an asset or a liability 1s measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or hability. assumung that market participants act m
thew econonic best interest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial assct lakes mlo account a markel participant’s ability 1o generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset m its highest and best use

The Compam- uscs valuation techniques that are appropraie in te circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value. maxmusing the use of relevant
observable mputs and minmusing the use of unobservable mputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hicrarchy. described as follows. based on the
lowest level mput that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjustedr market prices in active markets for identical assets or labilues

Level 2- Vatuation techmques for which the lowest level mput that is significant to the far value measurement 1s directhy or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuauon techmques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and liabilitics that are recognized i the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (hased on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as 2 whole) at the end of each reporting period

The Compam 's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement. such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value, and for non-recurning measurement. such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations

Al ca the movements n the values of asscls and liabilties which are required 1o be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Companmy's
accounting policies. For this analvsis. the Management venfies the major mputs applicd i the latest valuation by agreeiny the mfonmation i the valuation computation 1o contracls and
other relevant documents

reporting date, the Management analyse

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of cach asset and hability with relevant extemal sources 1o determine whether the change 15 reasonable

ristics and nisks of the asset or hability and the

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and labilities on the basis of the nature. charac
level of the fair value hierarchy as explamed above
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

¢. Revenue recognition
Revenue 1s recosmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that the cconomic benefits will Now to the Company and the revenue can be reliabh measured

Interest Income
Iterest income is recorded vsing the effective mterest rate (ETR) method for all financial nstruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR 1 the rate that exactly discounts estimated
luture cash recepts through the expected life of the financial instruments or. when appropriate. a shorter period. to the net carrving amount of the tinancial asset

The EIR {and therefore. the amorused cost of the asset 1s caleulated by taking mto account any discount or prennum on acquisiion. fees and costs that are an imegral part of the EIR

sents the best estmate of a constant rate of return over the expected hie of the loan

The Compam recognises interest income using a rate of return that reps

If expectauons regardi
carmying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment s subsequenth amortised through interest income n the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

the cash Mows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than eredit risk. The adjusument 1s booked as a positive or negative adjustment o the

Net gain on Fair value changes:

Any differences between the fai values of financial assets classificd as fair value through the profit or loss held by Compam on the balance sheet date 1s 1ecognised as on unreahised
wain/ loss. In cases there is a net gam in the aggregate. the same 15 recogn Vi
disclosed under n the Statement of Protit and Loss

dn ™

" under revenue from operations and i there 1s a net loss the same s

1 gains on i value chang

Xpense

Similark. any realised gain or loss on sale of linancial instruments measured at FVTL and debt mstrum
is recogmsed m net gain‘loss on [air value changes
zain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amontised is presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ("FVOCT™)

However, ne

Fees and commission

Serviee fees and facilitation char

s are recogmised on satisfactorly completion of service deliven

4. Financial instruments
A Financal instrument is any' contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one entiy and a financial habiliy or equity instrument of another entity
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial asscts and financial labibtics are ¢ mised when the Company becomes a panty to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair
value adjusted for transaction costs. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial labilities 1s described below

Non-derivative financial assets
Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost

a Financial asset is measured at the amorused cost if both the following conditions are met

The asset ts held within a business model whose objective 15 to hold assets for collecting contracwal cash flows. and Contracwal terms of the asse
(lows that are solely pavments of prmcipal and interest (SPP1 on the principal amount outstanding

ve nise on specified dates to cash

Afier imitial measurement. such financial assets are subsequenthy measured at amortised cost using the cffecuve inierest rate (EIR) method. Amortised costis calculated by taking into
account anv discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that are an miegral part of the EIR. The EIR amorusation 1s included i interest meome m the Statement of Profit and
Loss

ii. Investments in equity instruments

Investments in cquity instruments which are held for trading are classified at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other cquity mstruments. the Company makes an
irrevocable chorce upon mitial recogaition, on an instrunient by instrument basts. to classift the same cither at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to Statment of Profit and Loss However, the Company transfers
the cumulative gain or toss within equity

Dividends on such investments are recogmsed in Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dwidend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the mvestment

. Investments in mutual funds
Invesiments i mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition of financial assets

Financial assets (or where applicable, a pan of financial asset o pan of a group of similar financial assets) are derecogmsed (i¢ removed from the Compam s balance sheet) when the
contractual nights 1o receive the cash flows from the financial asset have expured. or when the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards are transfered. Further, if the
Company has nol retained control, it shall also desrecognise the financial asset and recopmse separately as asscls or labilitics any rights and obligations ereated or retained m the
transfer

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to mtal recogmtion. all non-dernvatve financial habibues are measured at amorused cost using the effective mierest method

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial hability is de-recogmsed when the obligation under the liabiliy is discharged or cancelled or expired When an existing financial habihiny is replaced by another from the
ually modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecogmuion of the
e carrving amounts is recogmsed in the Statement of Profit and Loss

same lender on substanually different terms. or the terms of an exasting habiliy are subs

orgmal hability and the recognition of a new hability. The difference i the respe

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and linancial liabilities arc offset and the net amount 1s reported i the balance sheet i there 15 a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recogn)
there 15 an mtention o settle on a net basis. (o realise the assets and settle the labihues simultaneoush

d amounts and




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
. Foreign currency

Transactions i fereign currency are recorded at exchange rate previnling on the date of transaction. Foreign curtency denominated monetany assc
exchang,

and habilities arc translated at the
rate prevarhing on the balance sheet date and exchange g or loss ansing en seulement and restatement are recogmised n the Statement of Profit and Loss

1. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Recognition and initial measurement

Property. plant and cquipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprses purchase price. borrowing cost if capitalisation criteria are met and dircetly attributable cost of
bringing the assct 1o its working condition for the intended use. Ay trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's canying amount or recognised as o separate asset. as appropriate. only when it is probable that future ceonomic benefits associated with
atement of Profit and Loss

the ttem will flow 1o the Company and the cost of the ttem can be measured reliably . All other repair and maintenance costs are recogmsed i S

Depreciation and amortisation
Properiv. plant and cqupment are subsequenth measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on property. plant and equipn
the wiitten down method over the useful ife of the assets. as preseribed under Part "C” of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act. 2013

nt 15 provided on

Asset Class eful life
Office cquipment 5 vears
Computer cquipment 3yvears
Fumiture and fixture 10 vears

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the a
depreciation are reviewed at the end of cach financial year. PPE cost

etis ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed. The residual values, useful hives and method of
up 1o Rs. 3,000 mdividually are depreciated fulby in the vear in which they are purchased

De-recognition

An ttem of property . plant and cqmpment and anv significant part mitially recogmsed is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benelits are expeeted from ils use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carmving amount of the assel) 1s rec gmsed in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. when the assetis de-recogmsed.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost. comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses acquire property . plant and cquipment, Assets which are not ready to miended use
are also shown under capital work-m-progress.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has clected to measure all its property. plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carmvng amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition of Ind AS 1. April 1.
2018

Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition The cost comprises purchase price including am import dutics and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from
taxation authorities). borrowng cost if capitalisation criteria are met and dicetly attnbutable cost of bringmg the asset 1o its workmg condition for the mtended use

Computer software - 3 vears

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised over a their estimated uscful hves The esumated useful life famortisation perod) of the mtangible assets 15 amved basis the expected patiern of
consumption of cconomic henclits and is reviewed at the end of cach financial vear and the amorusation peniod 1s revised o reflect the changed pattern. if amy The estimated uschul
lives of intangible asscts are as follows

Computer Software - 5 vears

2. Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expenses and net cha
of Profit and L
recoy

in the deferred tax assets or habiliies during the vear. Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement
_ except when they relate 1o item that are recognised in other comprehensive income or direeth in equity. in which case. the current and defemed tax arc also
ed in other comprehensiv e income or dircetly in equity. respectively

Current tax

Provision for current tax is recognized based on the cstimated tax liability computed aiter taking eredit for allowanees and exempuons n accordance with the Income Tax Act. 1961
Advance taxes and provision for current income tax are presented in the balance sheet atier offsetting the advance tax paid and income tax provision ansing in the same jurisdiction and
where the relevant tax paving units mtends to settle the asset and hability on a net basis

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed i respeet of temporary diflerences between carrying amount of assets and labilities for financial reportng purpases and corresponding amount used for
taxation purposes Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused ax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it 1s probable that the future taxable
profits will be available agamst which they can be used. This is assessed based on the Compam s forecast of future operalng resulls. adjusted for significant non-taxable mcome and
expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecogmsed deferred tax assets are re-pssessed at cach reportimg date and are recogmised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assei to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measwred at the tax rates that are expected 10 apph in the year when the asset 15 reabsed o the habilty 1s seuled. based on tax rates (and tax

laws] that have been enacted o substantineh enacted at the reportmg date: The measurement of defierred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner m which

the Compam expects. al the reporting date to recover or settle the camving amount of its assets and labilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilites are offset only if there 15 a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the habiliy on a net basis or simuhancously, Deferred tax relating 1o items
ognised outside statement of profit and loss is recogrised outside Statement of Profit and Loss (enther in other comprehensive income or i equity )

h. Emplovee Benefits

Short-term emplovee benefits:

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and arc expensed as a related serviee provided A liability is recognised for the amount expeeted 1o be
paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharmg plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
cmployee and the obligation can be estimated rehably

Contribution to provident fund and other funds ;

In dccordance with Indian Law, chaible ecmplovees receve benefits from Provident Fund | Emplovee State Insurance Contribution (ESIC) and Labour welfare fund which is defined
contribution plan. In case of Provident fund. both the emplavee and emplover make monthly contnbutions to the plan. which 1s admmistrated by the Govermnment authorities, cach equal
1o the specific pereentage of emplovee's basic salary The Company has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. Obligation for contributions 1o the plan 15
recognised as an emplovee benefit expense i the Statement of Profit and Loss when mcurred
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Gratuity:

Gratuy 1s a post emplovment benefit and 15 m the nature of a defined benefit plan. The habihty recogmsed m the balance sheet in respect of gratuty 15 the present ¢ of the defined
benefit/ obligaton at the balance sheet date less the far value of plan 5. together with adjustments for unrec: sed actuanal gains or los nd past service costs The defined
benefits / obhgations are caleulated at the balance sheet date by an mdependent actuary using the projected umit credit method

Actuarial gains and losses arising on the measurement of defined benclit obliganion 1s charged’ eredited 1o other comprehensive mcome

Compensated Absences:
The emplovees of the Compam arc ent
balances,

d to leave as per the leave poliey of the Company. Compensated absenses recogmsed m Statement of Profit and Loss and unutilized leave

fam expires at the end of year

i. Borrowing costs:
Borrowing cost of financial liabilities is recognised usmg the Effective Intrest Rate (EIR) method

1. Impatrment of non-financial assets

At cach reporting date. the Company assesses whether there is anv indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such mdication exists. the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. 17 such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating umit 1o which the asset belon
is recognised m the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at the reporung date. there is an indication that it'a previoush: assessed imparment loss no longer exists. the recoverable amount s
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount

15 less than s carrving amount. the carrving amount is reduced 10 its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an inpairment loss and

k. Impairment of financial assets

Loan assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recog
mstruments. and are measured at amortised cost.

ition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt

For recognition of impaument loss on other financial assets and nisk exposure, the Company detenmines that whether there has been a significant nerease in the credit nish since mitial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 1 2-month ECL is caleulated to provide for impainnent loss. However, if credit rish has increased significantly, hfetime ECL 1s
used I 1n a subsequent period. credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant nercase m credit s 15

sing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL

k since initial recogmition, the Company rey

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected hife of a financral instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default ¢vents that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date

The measurement of ECL is caleulated using three main components: (1) probability of default (PD) (i) loss given default (LGD} and (iii) the exposure at default (EAD). The 12
month ECL 15 calculated by muluphang the 12 month PD. LGD and the EAD The 12 month and hfetime PDs represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaming
maturity of the instrument respectivels. The EAD represents the expected balance at default. taking mto account the repayment of principal and mterest from the balance sheet date 0
the default event together with amy expected draw downs of committed faciliies The LGD represents expeeted losses on the EAD given the event of default. takimg mio account.
among other attributes. the mitigating effect of collateral value at the ume it 1s expected 1o be realised and the ume value of money

The Company applies a three-stage approach 10 measure ECL on financial asscls accounted for at amortised cost and FVTOCT Assets migrate through the followmg three
based on the change in credit quality see inal recognition

1) Stage | 12-months ECL - For exposures where there has not been a sigmficant increase in credit nsk sinee wibial recognition and that are not eredit imparred upon orgination. the
portion of the lifeume ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within e next 12 months s recogmsed. Exposures with days past due (DPD less than or equal
10 29 davs are classificd as stage | The Compam has dentified zero bucket and bucket with DPD less than or cqual to 29 davs as two separate buckets

ition but that arc not credit impaired
slage 2. At cach reportmg date. the Company assesses whether

) Stage 2 Lifeume ECL — not eredit impaired - For credit exposures where there has been a sigmficant merease i credit nsk since intial recog
a hifetime ECL is recognised Exposures with DPD equal 1o 30 days but less than or equal to X9 davs are classified 2
there has been o significant merease m credit risk for financial asset since nitial recognition by comparmy the risk of default occurnng over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of i on. The Company has identified cases with DPD equal to or more than 30 davs and less than or cqual to 59 davs and cases with DPD equal to or
more than 60 davs and less than or equal to 89 davs as two separate buckels

tial recogn

) Stage 3¢ Lifeume ECL = credit impaired - Financial assel 1s assessed as cre stimated futur
of that asset have occuned For financial asset that have become credit impanre

or more than 90 davs are classified as stage 3

1 impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the cash flows
alifetime ECL 1s recogmsed on principal outstanding as at period end. Exposures with DPD cqual to

¢ assets For debl secunties at FVOCT the loss allowance 1s

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carmying amount of
recognised in ©CT and carmying amount of the financial asset 1s not reduced in the balance sheet

The Compam docs not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets. i< financial asscts which are ¢redit impaired on purchase/ onginaton

I has been the Company’'s policy to regularly review its models i the context of actual loss experience and adjust whea necessany . Refer note 38 (C) for detailed note

Trade receivables
In respect of trade receivables. the Compans applics the simplificd approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal 1o hftme expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default ¢vents over the expected life of trade receivables

Write-offs
Financial assets are wntten off either partially or i thew entirery to the
Profit and Loss

re credited 1o the Statement of

nt that there 1s no reabistic prospect of recovery. Amv subscquent recoy eries

L. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash on hand tincluding mprest). demand deposits and short-term highly liquid mvestments that are readily convertible mto known amount of cash
and which are subjeet 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value The Company has netted off the balance of bank overdraft with cash and cash cquivalents for cash Flow Statement

m. Provisions. Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets:
Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation ¢an be made at the reporting date
¢ date and adjusted 1o reflect the current best cstimates. Provisions are discounted to their present v alues, where the ume value of money

These estimates are reviewed at each repont,
1s matenal

Contingent habthiry 15 disclosed for:
Passtble obligations which will be confirmed only by future ¢vents not wholly within the control of the Company o

Present obligations ansing [rom past ¢vents where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligaton or a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannot be made

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of mcome is vinually cenain, related asset is disclosed
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n. Reimbursement of processing fee and other charges

As per the guidelines of new government schemes under Pradhan Manin Awas Yoy
Compam 15 entitled 1o get a reimbursement lrom the customers for the expensy
“Non-housing loans”™. included under Loans and advances in the Balance Sheet
The expenscs presented m the Statement of Profit and Los

na (PMAY). no proce:
ncurred

allowed to be charged 1o the chgible customers. However. the
conncetion with ongination of the loans. Such reimbursement receivable forms part of

ch as Salarics and wages. Insurance. Frankmng charges. ot are stated net of such recoverics from customers

o. Earnings per share

The b camings per cquity share 1s computed by dividmg the net profit attnbutable 1o the equity sharcholders for the vear by the weighted average number of equiy shares
outstanding during the reportmg period The number of shares used m computing diluted carnings per share comprises the werghted average number of shares cor sidered for dermving
basic carmings per share and also the weighted average number of cquity shares. which may be issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential shares. unless the results w ould be anu
dilutive

p. Leases

As a lessee

case

s of low-value asscts. The Company reco,

The Compam applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-lerm le
liabilities 1o make lease pasments and right-of-use assets representng the right to use the underhing as

i. Right of use assets

The Compam recogr right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1¢ . the date the underhing asset1s avaitable for use) Right-of-use assets are measured at cost.
less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilitics. The cost of nght-of-use assets includes the amount of lease Tiabilitics
recos d. imtial direct costs incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease tenm and the estumated useful lives of the assets

The night-of-use assets are also subject 1o impament. Refer note 2 (13 of accounting policy for impairment of non-financial asscts

ii. Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Company recogruses lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease pavments
include fixed pavments (including in-substance fixed pavments) less any lease ncentives receivable. variable lease pavments that depend on an index or a rate. and amounts expected
{0 be paid under residual value guarantecs. The lease pavments also mclude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option 1o termnate. Vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce mventories) in the peniod in which the event or condition that tniggers the payment eceurs

In calculating the present value of kease pavments. the Company uses its incremental borrow ing rate at the lease commencement date because the terest rawe mpheit in the kease 15 not
readiby determinable. Afier the commencement date. the amount of Iease liabilitics is inereased 1o refleet the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition.
the carming amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there 15 a modification, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease pavments (e g . changes to future pavments resulting
from a change in an index of rate used to determine such lease pavments) or a change in the assessment of an option 10 purchase the underhing assct

The Compam s lease liabihues are meluded m other financial liabiliics

it Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company apples the short-term lease recognition exemption 1o its short-term leases of machinery and cquipment (1.¢., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). 1t also applics the lease of low=value assets recognition exemption 1o leases of laptops. lease-lines and office
are recognised as expense on a straight-hne basis over

furniture and cquipment that are considered 1o be low value. Lease pavments on short-term leases and leases of low -value
the lease term

As alessor

Leases in which the Company does net transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards ncidental (o owners
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs meurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 1o the carmng amount of the leased
d over the lease term on the same basis as rental income Contingent rents are recognised as revenue n the period i which they are camed

ip of an asset are classified as operating leases Rental income arismg 1s

assct and recognis
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Cash and cash equivalents
(Antount n Bs 100
Particulars As at As at Axat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Cashon hand 193 36 1.07% 41 86 33
nces with banks - wcwnent accounts* 103,728 400 4729181 20230331
Total 103.923.76 A8.370.22 203011164
* Includes amounts recenved towards NHB subsidy pending iransfer 1o customers 11,251 26 17,327 06
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents
i Amount m Ka (K1)
Particulars As at As at Asal
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Deposits with matarity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months® 00 814 41 1042 10640 3%
Total 209814.41 10,423.37 1064058
* Bank deposit held as secunty agamst the bank puarantee
Loans
EAmoumt n Re (U0
Particulars As ar As ar As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 201%
At amortised cost
(i) Term loans
tay Housmg loans 6,700,743 64 3616108 38 43T R0 2R
i1 Non Houstng loans 215259 46 102,673 92 19337037
el 1o emplovees Y36 (9 511l 26017
Total (i) - Gross ®.916,939.19 5.719.293.51 4.563.966.82
Imparment loss allowance (33.712.10) (30,219 51y (37025 78)
Tuotal (i) - Net #,883.227.00 3,689.074.00 4,526.941.04

(i) Secured/unsecured

() Secured In tangible assets
i) Unscamed

Total (i) - Gross

Less Impatment luss allowince

Total (i) - Net

{iiii) Loans in India
{a) Public sector
byl

CIERET ]

3.TIRTRL 50

1,563,706 65

936 (4 260 17
6.916,939.19 4.563.966.82

(33.712 10) (37,025 7%)
6.883.227.09 S.689.074.00 452094104

6.916.939 19

3719293 31

363900 81

wal 6916939 19 3,714,293 31 4303 960 82
s Imparment loss allowanee (3371210 (321051 (37015 78)
Total (iii) - Net 6,883,227.0% £,689,074.00 4.526,941.04
{iv) Loans outside India
(at Loan outside India - - -
Total tivy 5 z 5
Other financial ascets
(Amount i Rs 0007
Particulars As at As at A\. at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
At amortised cost
Securnty deposits 3795 34 31643
Stall advances 44377 189 10
Others recetvables 108000 - =
Total 332111 335.53 287394
Current tax assets (net)
CAmount i Rs Y
Pl As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 201%
Advance tax® 331163 3.563 54 7.062 RY
Total 351165 5.563.54 7.062.89
Hnet o provision for tax 31 March 2020 Rs 40.045 48 thousands - 31 March 2019 Rs 28 704 3o thousands 1 Apnl 2018 Rs 0,292 00 thousands |
Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities (net)
Amount in Rs 000"
Asal As at Ay at

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

1 April 2018

Deferred Tax assets

Provision for unpaimment RARL 66 8799 92 10781 91
Provision e employce be 3 2.761 73 163284 1339 48
Tinung diference on PPE deéprecianion/smontisation 1,146 66 54
Share 1xsu¢ expenses RUTRG -
Transaction cost on loans 149,800 72 1254306
Lease habihities 162 54 182 63 -
Total deferred Tax assets 32.151.7% 29.952.17 25,041.99
Deferred Tax liabilities

Anwrtization of borrowing costs (4928 14) (294K By {2406 24y
‘Total deferred Tax liabilities (4928.14) (2.900.86) (2.406.24)
Net deferred Tax assets/(labilities) 27 829.65 2705131 22.0635.78

_\‘R\{’/"

TNANCE X



Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Li

(Formerly known as Micrn Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

9 Investment property

(Amount i Rs 0007y

Particulars

Frechold land

Total

Gross block

Demed cost at 1 Apnil 2018 { Refer note below

258,71

25071

Additions
Deletons

As at 31 March 2019

Addinons
Deletions

250,71

As at 31 March 2020

250,74

Accumulated depreciation

As at | April 2018

Cha
Deletions

ot the vear

As at 31 March 2019

Charge tor the vear
Deletions

Ax at 31 March 2020

Net block

As at 31 March 2020

25071

25071

As at 31 March 2419

25071

As at | April 2008

25071

ales:

The Con

propetties and no contractual obligations o aither purchase, constict of develop investment properties or for repans, mamienance and enhancements

(a) Fair value of inyvestment property

any's vestment property 15 a prece of land i Indra, currently held for undetermuned use: The Company has no restietions on the realisalnhity of s nvestment

(Amount in Rs 000

g As at Ax at Asat
Particulars
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 I April 2018
Frechold Lmd 148 78 14878 148 78
Fhe fair value of investment property has been determined by an independent valuer, who has adequate professional expertence as well as adequate expertise i the

lovation and categors of the myestownt property. The value i3 determimed

ased v the rate pres

thed by government

uthonities for the propet

Managenment believes

that the net recoverable value of the property would be higher than carmy ing amount and therefore. no impanuent has been made The resultant fair value esimates for

i estiment property s ncladed in level 2

Thiere are no amounts recogmsed i the Statcment of Profit and Loss aceount i relation to the above unvestiment property

The Company used cam ing amount of Rs 250 71 thousands s per previous GAAP as on 1 Apnl 2018 m ats opemng IND AS statement of fimancial posttion as deemed

cost for an Investment Property




Svatantra Micrs Housing Finance Corpuration Li

{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporal

ted
n Limited)

Nutes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Property. plant and equipment

Aot in Rs 00w

i Computer and
i Lease
Particulars Office equipment Beriithife. ani data processing n bty Total
fixtures - improvements
equipment
Gross block
Deemed cost at 1 April 20018 (Refer note below) 503 64204 315.75 - 1AKLN2
Addhons L3412 28N Ky N30 KO EXEER T 532591
Deletion LT9 RSO (10,781 . (323,39}
As at 31 March 2012 LE79.15 T95.32 114183 306604 6.582.34
Addhion 72550 N o 1.522.39
[eletion (44030 - - - (H.45)
As at 31 March 2020 H48.70 1.867.33 339453 8.360.08
Accumulated depreciat
As at | April 2018 = = = -
Charge for the vea SR80 U0 RIETRE 31957 1437 26 229808
Deletions (249 393 300 10 79) - {171.29)
As at 31 March 2019 83151 219.24 308,78 1,0137.26 2,126.79
Chiarge for the vem 830,67 156,78 79140 129235 309138
Deletions - - < (23 741
As at 31 March 2020 I86.02 1118 2.329.79 5,194.43
Net block
As at 1 April 2018 52403 642,04 JI8.75 - 148182
As at 31 March 2019 102764 S06.08 83305 2028.78 445555
Ax at 31 March 2020 RTL468 462.68 76715 1,064.74 3.166.25

The Company sed car g amount as per previons GAAP as on | Aprl 2018 m s opemng IND AS statement of linancial position as deemed cost for the item of

property, plant and equipnient

Fullowing are the diselosures with regard o its gross block value. accumuluted depreciation and net block value as per previous GAAF as on | Apr

Particulars Original Cast Ateamisate Net Block
depreciation

Oifice equipmet 177 3468 T4

Furnilure and fixtines 1074 89 13285

Canmputer and data processing cquipment 252351 220776

[ easehold improvements - - _

Total 1N XIS [FTIER

201%

it
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Furmerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Nodes te the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Other Intangible assels (Amount i Rs 0007
Particulars Computer software
Gross block

Costat | April 2018 -
Additons 3746l
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2019 37461
Additions E
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2020 37461
Accunulated o iation / tisati

Asat I April 2018 -
Charge for the vea 390
Deletons -
As at 31 March 2019 59,041
Charge Tor the vear 198 84
Deletions %
As at 31 March 2020 257.84
Net block

As at 1 April 2018 =
As at 31 March 2019 31561
As at 31 March 2020 116.77

Right of use Asset

(Amount 1 Rs, 000}

Particulars

Gross amount as at 1 April 2018
Additions

Accumulated deprec
Asat 1 April 2018
Chy i the vear
Deletwns

tion / amortisation

Deletons =

As at 31 March 2019 1521310
Addinons (KN ES
Deletons -

As at 31 March 2020 16.277.28 |

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2020

Charge for the vear 3578491
Deletions -
As at 31 March 2020 1077165
Net block

As at 1 April 2018 11,635.96
Ax at 31 March 2019 10,020.36

280863




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Furmerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corpuration Limited)

Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

12 Other non-financial assets
(Amount i Rs W

Particulars Asat As at Asal

31 March 20200 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Prepaid expenses 7983 4] 437035 6.701 47
Capital advanees - & KON (M)
Other assets 148 48 7660 =
Total B.132.39 4.646.93 7.501.47

13 Trade payables
cAumwunt in Rs Gk

Particulars As at As at Asar

31 March 2020 31 March 2819 1 April 2018
Total oatstanding dues of micrs enterprises and small enterposes ¢ Reter note 8208 - -
Total sutstanding dues of creditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 402113 R¥N 63 1078 2R
Total 4.103.21 KAK.O3 1.078.28

14 Other payables
Amount in Rs "G00

Particulars A at Asat As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Toal vutstanding dues of nuicte entet s and small enterprises (Refer note 431 - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micio enterprises and small enterprises 33 L1v4 41 1.295.27
Total 2.539.35 119441 1.293.27

15 Debi securities
{Amount in Rs. (KK

Particulars Asat Avatl Avat
31 March 2020 31 March 201% 1 April 201%
Secured

At amortised cost

Redeemable non-convertible debentures® ; 52554072 262447 98
Total 526.300.97 51554072 26244798
Debt secunities m India 32650097 325354072 202 447
Debt seewities outsude India - - .
Total 326, 300,97 525.540.72 262.447.98

* The unlisted secured redeemable non=convertible debentures were issued by the Company via private placement and it has been fully subseribed by International Fnanee Corporation. Washigton which
on the standard porttolio and the recen ables of the Company a3 created inially and future Joans which are required for the purpose of maintaining the

the Company and Intemiational Finance Corporation, Washington

ch, 2004 and as at | April 2018 more than 3 vears) from the date of debentures sssued and will be redeemed on 18 November 2024 Rate
as at Apnl 1 2018 9 43% to 10600

are secured by first ranking and exclusive ¢

recment entered mto betwes

v cover as per the @

Debentures 1ssued by Company has a matuiny of 3 vears (as at v
of imterest payable on debentures 159 43% 10 10 60% (as at March 31, 20199 43% to 10 61

The pavinent of interest half vearly and Principle pavable at maturity {Amount in Rs. 000"
As at As at As al
Rate of interest Maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 201%
Secured Secured
4 43% - 10 60% Wathin 1-3 vears - :
More than 3 vears - S31RAIIKE 265 (U} LHH
531,000,010 S3LIHH)HY 265, (HNLUD
Adjustments of wamortised processing tee based on EIR {4,699 03 (2.55202%
Total adjusted Debt securitics 5265011 97 32354072 26247 U8

16 Borrowings (other than debt securities)
1Amount in Rs ‘0040

Particulars As at As at Ax at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
At amartised cost
Secured
Term loans

1.977 449 87

- from banks
- trom National Housing Bank

= from Fnancial Instumtion (F1) S46.458 AT
Loans Repayable on Demand
- from a Bank 949,400 (K1 - -
Unsecured
Term loans
- from other party - = 1500000 DL
Total 3,175.419.99 45557403 3.458.533.29
Bomowings in India SAT3.418 99 3458333 24
Borew ings vutside Tudia = - -
Tutal 5, 175419.99 403557403 3.458.533.29
Notes:

(11 T loans and Taans repavable on demand are scemed by first exclusive chan e theongh hypothecation of ook debts/ recervables (housing loans? of the Compam: both present and finture and asstgmnent
ot mortgage on the dwelling mts financed from such term Lo




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Carporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

an The repavment of the borrowing 1= done i monthly. quarterly, half' - vearly and annual mstallment as per the sanctioned wams
(Amount m Rs 0R1Y

Asat Asat As at
Rite of interest Categaty Maturity 31 March 2020 31 March 201% L April 2018
Secured/ unsecured | Secured/ unsecured | Secured/ unsecured
Ra- 104 Banks 21428 57 2142837 T5.314.29
e 0% Banks 71,142 86 183.352.39 134.133.34
Hanks 100,925 90 167.77% 57 [0 268 53
B Within | year 7.449.99 21754 14 -
1 B 200000 (0 -
11 162 863 70| G006 T T
Other partics = - 150 1H
NHHR 153,273 46! 127.334 3% [31 430 1K
Banks 04.283 71 B3T14 29 30125713
[anks 251,761 90 GOKAT0 19 13,606 66
Hanks Within: =5 vears 1647 514 13 T 124 29 277687 34
Bunks 3393 ¥6.956 54 -
F1 INS 46 K3 SARALL 49 141,027 4
NHEB BYS.703 (H) HAT.073 0] 083,214 Ui
K= Banks - - 23495713
om0 Banhs 8371428 290042 B 18080 G0
[0%%e] | % Banks NGRSl 32R0O17 35 33711 00 104,943 60
11%-12% Banks - B 956 49 |
A= |11%s NIB 246,826 0l 492827 .00
Total borrowings (excluding loans repavable on demand) §5,094.251.61 406597416 3466,709.12
Adustments of unamertised processmg fee based on EIR (18231 63) RN (817581
Total adjusted borrowings (excluding loans repayable on demand) z S076.019.96 45557408 3438.533.31
Other financial liabilities
(Amount in Rs 1001
Particulars As at Axat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 34504 5 717 26 UR2 3R
Subsidy recaved lrom NHB pending ransfer to customer * 17
Lease habilies .974.26 1088% 71
Empliwee benelits pavable 761 34 K39 93 -
Total 6093240 66.803.20 58,398.15
# Pertain to credn hinked subsidy and iterest subvenuon scheme subsady receved from NHB. pending wredin i respective applicant account
Provisions
(Amount i Rs 00U
= Asat As at As at
Particulary 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 | April 201%
Tintunded
Provision for emploves benelits - Gratuty (alse reter note 31 1097318 5607 27 4,399 87
Total 10,973.18 5.607.27 4,599.87

Other non-financial liabilities
LAmount n Rs (WK

- B ¥ at Asat
Parduulins stk 2030 P | April 2018
Statutory dues R 3067 74 266106
Advances 1ron Custonwt s 1.377.32 491 33 2 R23 U0
Total 446086 3550.27 548412
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Carperation Limited

(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
Share capital

Dretails of authorised. issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

Amount in Rs G

Particulars

Asat 31V
No. of shares

larch 2020

As at 31 March 2019

As at 1 April 2018

Amount

No.of shares

Amount

No. of shares

Amount

Authorised share capital
Lauity shares of Rs 10 cach
Non-Cumulative Compulsonly Comvertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 cach

Issued. subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of Rs 10 cach, fully paid up

5% Non-Cumulative Compulsonily Convertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 cach,
fully paid up

35.000,000
3,000,000

350.000.00
300.000.00

35.000.000

35000000

33,000,000

350.000.00

H30,000.04

350,000.00

350.000.00

30,227,575

3,000,000

30227575

300.000.00

0.227.575

25179414

25178440

Total

602,275.75

251.784.40

i. The reconcilia
Equity Shares

ion of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2009 is set out belo

(Amaount m Rs, 000

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Shaves vutstanding al the ¢nd of the vear

Particulars >

No. of shares Amount Amount
Shares outstanding st the beginming of the yeas 30,227, 302.266.02 251,784.40
Adjustments related to Company's Emplovees Trust - - 5048162

302.266.02

302.266.02

Noon-Cumulative Compulsurily Convertible Preference shares

{Amount m Rs. 000

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Particulars
No. of shares Amount Nu. uf shares Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year - B s .
Issued during the vear 3.000.000 300.000.00 i #
Shares outstanding at the end of the vear 3.000.000 300.000.00 = S
ii. Sharcholders holding more than 5% of the shares in the Company
Equity shares A a¢ 31 March 2020 Asat 31 March 2019 As at 1 April 2018

_ No. of shares % of holding No. of shares %s of holding No. of shares % of holding |
Svatantra Holdings Private Linnted * 30.227,569 100% 30,227.569 100%, 11,060.255 44%
Ananvashree Birla - 0% - 0% 5,049,135 20%
Mr. Nachiket Shelpikar - 0% - 0% 4,605.268 187,
Michael and Susan Dell Foundation - (G - 0% 12%
Unilazer Alternative Ventures LLP - 0% - 0% 9%

* Svatantra Holdings Private Limited acquired the 99 99%, fully paid equity shares from previous shareh

No objection certificate was 1ssued by National Housing Board (NHB) vide letter dated 24th July. 2015,

older on 15th September 2018 as approved by the Board of Directors on the Board meeting held on 15th September. 2018

Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Comvertible Preference shares

As ar 31 M

larch 2020

Asat 31 M

larch 2019

As at 1 April 2018

No. of shares |

%% of halding

No. of shares

“% of halding

No. of shares

| % of halding

Svatantra Holdings Private Limited

3.000.000 |

1007

iii. Right, preferences and restrictions attached o equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. All shares rank part passu on repayment of capital in the event of
liquidation. In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holder of the equity shares will be entitled 1o receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential amounts. However. no such
preferential amounts exists currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders. The Company declares and pavs dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board

of Directors is subject 1o the approval of shareholders in the ensuing General Meeting.

iv. Right, preferences and restrictions attached to Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

The Company has 1ssued of
CCPS shall carry a fixed r.

¢ of dividend of 5

3,000,000 5% Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each ' CC

S") for cash at par aggregating 10 Rs. 300,000 thousands in three tranches as detatled below, The
(Five Percent) on the capital paid up thercon calculated on a proportionate basis from the date of allotment. The CCPS shall be compulsorily convertible into such number of

Equity Shares on expiry of 10 vears (rom date of allotment (Refer below) at price valued by a Chartered Accountant having munimum 10 vears® of experience at that point of ume and shall be non-cumulative, The CCPS shall
rank pari passu in all respects. subject 1o the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and that the CCPS shall qualify for dividend, if any. declared by the Company for the current year on a pro

rata bhasis from the date of allotment

Allotment details

Allotment date

No. of shares

Amaunt (3)

1.000,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 cach (Tranche I
1,000,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 ¢ach (Trache I
1000000 CCPS of Rs. 100 cach (Tranche 1T

16-0c¢t-19
13-Feb-200
27-Mar-20

10,000
1,000,000
10K, 000

TO0,000,000.00
100,000.000.00
100.000.000.00

Pursuant to the Consent letter dated 31 March 2020, the aforesaid conversion term are revised as follows:
CCPS shall be compulbsorily convertible into equity shares of the Company afier expiry of six months but on or before the expiry of ten years fiom the date of allotment {Refer note above) of CCPS in the ratio of 2:5 i.e, 2 CCPS

of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up shall be convertible into 5 equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up (face value per Equity sharc of

allotment, then the CCPS shall be automatically converted into equity shares
All other terms and conditions of CCPS shall remain in full foree and effect.

v. Shares issucd for consideration other than cash

<. 10 Plus prer

um of Rs. 30 per share). If the CCPS are not converted within 10 years from the

The Company has notissued / allotied any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being recerved i cash, nor 1ssued any bonus shares nor there has been any buy back of shares durmg five years immediately preceding 31

March 2020




Svatantra Micra Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Nutes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Amount in Rs 0007

21 _Other equity
Particulars Notes Asat Ax at Asat
31 Muarch 2020 31 March 2019 1L April 2018

Sectrities premum 5165 H5 10551 131605 31
Statutory reserve inder Section 29C of the NHE Act, 1987 121.26% 11337541 W3l
Tnpairnkent reserves I8 123 %5 2586 51 -
Retamned ecanmings 279275 9% 27806 42 22359242

863,773.71 B42.033.85 TS0360. 4

(Anwunt m Rs THA'

221 | Particulars At At

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Securities premium
Opening balance M3 105 5] JR1 603 3
Add Premuum reverved on issue of shares « Adiustments related to Company's Employees Trusty - 135000 00
Closing balance FYENTIERS] 445,105.51
Statutory reseryes under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Operming balanee 115373 41 495338 31
Add Current vear tanster 3892 97 230 K
Closing balance 121,268.38 11537541
Impairment reserves

2586 5] g

Openmg balance
Add Crarent vear Wansfer

Closing balance

734
18,123.85

Retained carnings
Opening balance
Transterred from Statement of profit und loss

278 966 42

Transfer o statuton reserves

Transfer to Impairment reserves

Share 1ssue expenses (et of tax)

Htems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained carnings

Add Other comprehensive (lossimeome for the vear (1373 13y (550 74)
Closing balance 279,2753.98 278.966.42

222 Securities premium
Securities premuum 15 credited when shares are issued at premuum. It can be wsed o ssue bonus shaves. to provide for premiwm on redemption of shares or debentu

write=ofl equity related expenses ke

underariting costs et

223 Statutory reserves under Section 29C of the NHEB Act. 1987
As per Section 290 of Nahional Howsang Bank Act (NHIB). 1957, the Company 1 required to transfer at least 20% ol it net profits every vear o a resetve behi
any Speeial Resenves created by the Company under Section 3610 of the Income Tax Act. 1961 15 considered (o be an ehgible transter Thus. duning the vear ended 31 March 2019 and vear ended 31
C of the NHE Act. 1987

¢ any dividend 15 declared For this purpose.

Mareh 2020, the Company has transfared to Statutory Reserves. an amount anved m oceordance with Section 2

224 Impairment Reserves as per RBI notification
As per DOR (NBFC) CCPD No 10922 10 106/2019-20, whete impament allowance under Ind AS 109 15 lowa U
NBFCVARUs shall appropniate the difference from then net profit o Joss wiler tax 10 a separate Tinpairment Reser

withdrawals shall be permutted from this reserves withowt prier permmsston from the Department of Supervision, RBI

at the provisioning tequired under IRACP ancluding standard assel prosstonig).
med for regulatory

The balanee in the Impaiment Reserves” shall not be redl

captal Further, 1

m
14
n

Retained earnings
Retained carmings pertamn to the accumulated carmmgs / losses mude by the Company over the vears
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known ax Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Interest income

LAmount in Rs 'UiHY)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Interest on loans TIAR3Y 8 373038 7Y
Interest on deposits with banks [EXTTEN 754951
[nterest of corporate depasit [T TG 2917 %1
Other mtetest imcome 3RR2T0 RINY G
Total 737.893.18 58640570

Fees and commission income

(Amount in Rs G0

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2019

Service fees and tacihtation charges

17429

Total

374.29

Net gain on fair value changes

(Anwunt in Rs GHF)

Particulary

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

= Investments m mwiual funds 13,302 98 16 182 #1

1550298 16,182.81
Tatal net gain on fair value changes
Fair Value changes
“Reahised 13.302.9% Lo 182 ¥l
Unrealised - -
Total net gain on Fair value changes 15.502.98 16,182.81
Other income

tAmount n Rs 10407
Year ended Year ended

Puniculary 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Incomne from advertisment .00 00 -
Posinding miterest oo 198 549 198 35
Miscellancous incomw 58412 186 Y
Total 6,782.71 1

Finance costy

Amount n Rs (AR

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

On financial liabilities measured at amortised costs
Interest on borrowings (other than debt securiies |
Interest on Jebt secunties

Finanace costs on lease labilines

463,700 53

3R T46 0
0.317 81

Bank charges and vthers 3494 58
Total 523.384.34 389.976.92
Impairment on financial instruments
fAnwunt m Rs 0007
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

On financial instrument measured af amortised cost
Loans

Impanrient loss allowance 4101 85 (10,454 823
Write olfs 1,564 57 TiNs
1 567142 (10,380,497}
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atantra Micra Housing Finance Corporation Li
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Eimited)

Notes ta the financial statenients for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Emplovee bepefits expense

sAaount i Rs 0007

Year ended

Partivulars 31 March 2620

Year ended
31 March 2019

Sulanies and wages
Gratuly expenses (refer note 40)

Contribution 1o provident and ather funds

Stalf wellare expenses

Total 130.347.76

75.183.52

Depreciation and amortisation

CAmount i Rs GAE)

Year ended

Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation of plant, property and equipment 304138 2298 0%
Depriciation of (s shssels 337841 519274
Amortisation of Intangible asset 198 84 59 (41
Total K.869.13 754982

Other expenses

(Amount i Rs U0

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 201%

Electnaty cxpenses CTTER]

Remt 12808

Repans and mamtenance

- Others 21474

Insurance* 3.00.24
el taxes 171484

1.820000
2089 20

ul soltware expenses
Communication expen:

Comprutel

Professional legal and consultaney fees

146 98
247717
211332

1 294 Y6
236635

Prmting and stationerv* 1190 9%
Teavelling. convevanee and boarding expenses® 12,186 29
Advertising and marketng expenses HE
Corporate social responsibality (Refer Note 440 119610 1.122 (1}
Brokerage and commassion 1452 -

Miseclancous expenses® 8 2KX 31 5540 50
Tutal 25.506.52 38,285.40

Net of resmburserent from customers towards espenses ieurred m connection with dishursement of Toan under credit linked subsidy scheme as follows

Insuyance L
Printng and stationery =
Travellme eomvevumee and boarding expenses i
Mascellaneous expenses .

Note: Pavments to auditors

Audit fees 1,300 G 11K (k3
P Audt fees 240 .ub -
Certification work 2RO G0 A1 30
Reumbursenmwnt of ¢xpenses - 3340
1.820.00 1.294.96

Contingent liabilities and commitmenty

I Contingent Liabilites Rs 1138015 thousands® s at March 31,2019 Rs Nil as at Apnl 1 2018 Rs Nil)

11 Capital Commmments Rs Nilcas at March 312019 Rs Naloasat Apnd 1, 2018 Rs 1,055 60 thousands)
T Hindrawn Commitment given o Borrowers: Rs 1105334 79 thousands (as a1 Mareh 312019 Rs 791 906 32 thousands:
[l Bank pustantee ssued by Banks favonng the NHI for refinonee faciliies Rs 187,500 00 thousands (as ot March 31,2009 Rs. 100,000 00 thousands. as at Apnl 1 201X Rs

& Dysputed inconwe 1ax demiond against which the Company has preferred an appeal beture Commuisstonen of Income Ty (Appeals)

Tax expense

L0000 00 thousands)

(Amount n Rs A1)

Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Current tax expense

Current ax o the vear 1134092 28 704 36
Tatal 11.340.92 28.704.56
Deferred taxes

Relating w onginaton aid reversal of temporary dillerences 15243 (1R 29y
Net deferred tax expense 152,43 (4.189.29)
Total income tay expense 11,493.35 24.515.27

Tax reconciliation

Amount in Rs (HAF)

Year ended

Year ended 31 March

Income tax expense

Particulars

i 31 March 2020 w19

Profit befure income tax expense 36.399.67 103.063.42

Statulony meome 18X 1ate 25 17% 24 12%

Tax ab statutory income tax rate 9,161 07 sunl207

Tax effect of aniounts which are not deductible / not taxable in cal taxable income

Tax impact on expenses which 15 non deductible e |

Fax mpact on - deduchion under Section 360 v of the Incomie Tax Act, 1961 RELERET

Impact of difference m tax rale on certam items OIS -
11,493.35 14,515.27




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

w

Deferred tax movement related 1o the following:
31 March 2019 10 30 March 2020

(Amountn Rs i)

Deferred tax assets inet)

Asat

31 March 2019

Recognised
in Statement of
Profit and Loss

Recognised

in OCT

Recognized in equity

As at

31 March 2020

Deferred tax asset on account of:

Provision for impairment of sxsels 879992 (313 26} - - N AR O
Provision for smploves benetits 163284 112889 = " 276173
Share 1550 expe - - - 0] o8 401 08
[umng difference on deprecianon on property plant and cqwpment 706 41 - i 1 145 06
[ransaction costs on Loans IK.370 37 - - 19800 72
Lease habilines 18263 = < 102 34
2995217 - H01.68 J2751.7%
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Transactiom costs on borrowings 2HH 86 - . §.928 14
Teansaction costs on debt secuntie: - - - - -
Remeasurement of guns/ (Josses r on delined benenit plans . 32008 3249 Gy - -
290056 2.556.37 (52909 = 4928.14
2705131 (152.43) 529.00 401.68 2782968
I April 2018 10 31 March 2014 CAmountan Rs 000
Asat Recognised Recognised Asat
Deferred tax assets (net} Recognized in cquity
1 April 2018 i Statemetil uf inoct 31 March 2019

Profit and Loss

Deferred tay asset on aceount o

Provision for impairment of assets 16,781 91 (1,981 99 - - BI09.92

Provision for emplovee benefils 1339 48 293 36 - 2 1.632 84

Timing difference on depreciation on property plant and equipnient 377 54 IR KT - - 766 41

Transaction cuosts on Foans 1234306 5 i 18,370 37

I ¢ labilines - - - 182 63
2504099 - - 2995217

Deferred tax liahility on account of:

Transaction vosts on debl secunities .

Transaction custs on bostowings 2 40 23 494 62 - - 2 UK RG

Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans & 326,37 {226.27) - -

240624 T20.8% (226.27) = 191086

22,635.75 4.189.29 226.27 - 27.051.31




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly knownoas Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Earnings per share

(Amount i Rs 4

Particulars

Year emded
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

profit atnbwtable 1o equn holders

Weghted average number of equiny shares outstanding tor basie cormngs per share®

RERTH

Earnings per share

Basie cammng per share (24
Diluted carming per share 2}
Nen

al value per share (2)

* Warghted average nimbret of equny shares omstanding includes non cumulanve compulsonilv convertible preference shares

Related party disclosures
Related party diselosures as required under Indian Accounting standard 24 Related party

List of related partics

diselosure” are given below

Nature of relationship

Name of related party

Holding Company

Kev Managenal Personnel (KMEP)

Relatne of KMP

Othar Related Parties
(Parnes on which KMP's of the Company are able to exercise control)

Svatantra Heldings Private Limited (w ¢ 1 13 September 20181

My Madhusudhan Padath Pulloot. Director (upta 13 September 2018y

Mi Rinish Dhall. Managing Diector cupto 15 September 26184

Mr Nachiket Shelkar. Director and Cluel Financral Officer copto 15 September 20183
Ms. Avan Shab, Company Secretary (upto 24 December 20181

Ms. Anamvashree Birla, Chauperson (w ¢ 1 15 September 2018

Mr Vineet Chattree. Managing Director (w e 1 13 September 2018

Mit Aml Chivania, Disector iw e £ 15 Septemiber 2018)

Mr Sahil Mehta. Chief Finaneial Officer iw ¢ 13 September 2015y

Ms Tasneem Mandsorwala, Company Secretary (w e 0 24 December 2018}

M. Madhura Shelgikar upto 15 September 20181

Classapart Technologies Private Limited (upto |
NRS Micro Systems Private Limited (upto 15 $
Mobile Search Engine Private Limuted tupte 13 September 20183

plember 2018)

plember 20151

Transactions during the period with related partics :

(Amount in Ks o000

Transactions with

For the period For the period
Nature of transactions L April 2019 to 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Svatuntra Holdug Private Linuted

Mr Madhusudhan Padath Pulloot (upta 13 09 2018)
Mr Raunsh Dhall fupto 15 04 201%)

Mr Naclubet Shelgikar cupio 1509 2018

Ms Avam Shah tupto 24 12 2015

Mr Salal Mehta iwe £ 1309 2018y

Ms Tasneem Mandsorwala (we I 24 12 2018)

Ms Madhura Shelgkar (upto 1309 2018)

Compulsoniy convertible preference shares SUHE N G z
Remunration - 350K
. 35000
- 550 K
- (REIEEY]
Remunration 334999 1324 45
Remunration LT 156 00
- TT0 90

Noter
I There 13 no out.

standing balance as at 31 March 2020, 31 March 2019 and | Apnl 201% with related parties. other than CCPS of Rs 30,000 U thousands
2 Emplovee benefits i relation o gratwity are caleulated at the Company level and henee mot const

cred in ahove disclosure
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Svatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Capital management

The Compamy s coprtal amagement sirategy 1s w eftectvel determne, ratae and deplov capit

» cover risk mherent i business and s meching the capital adeguacy requirenients of National Housing Bk (NHB) The
as mav be appropnate The Company determuines te amount of capital requited on the basis of operitons and capital
whitwre The adequacy of the Company's capital 15 momtored vsmg. among other measipes. that includes the regulations issued by NHB

same 15 done through amus of aather equity and £ or combuation of shott e/ long temm Jdod
EN

The capital structore 15 monstored on the basts of net debt o equity and wmatunty profile of overall debr portioho. The Company’s pohiey 1s i line with Housme finance Companies (National Housig Bank Dircctions,
2010 e “NIB Drrections” o which cunently permns TF
There 15 o allocation of capital tequired as Company 15 primanthy operatmg n single segment ¢ finanemg. The Company's policies in respeet of caprial v

1o harrow up o 14 times o therr net osvned funds ("NOF*)
werment s Tegulany reviewed v Board of Diectors

Regulatory capital

P As at Asat Ay at
articulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Fquinn share capatal 302 306 02 302,266, 02 251,784 40
Nom-Cumilative compulsordy comeernble preference shares capital A0 GO0 O " -
Seennies prenum 145105 31 45,105 51 431605 31
Retained enmngs 299,292 %4 39242
Statulon reserves 101,251 52 45338 31
Less
= Defarred revenue expenditure represent prepawd expenses) 17983 41} 16,701 474
- Intangble Asset (16T g
-Deteried tay Asset (27829 63) (27051 31 122635 751
Tier I Capital LALLYNA (6 1109.770 12 Y7283 62
- Loss Allowances lor loans - Stage <1 3906 1% 4433066
Ticr Il Capital 3,066 1% 4433 60
Tier 1 + Tier 11 Capital 1419278 94 1113742 30 97741728

The Company has camphed m ol with all s extenmally imposed capttal requirements over the repurted period

Loan covenants

In order 1o achieve this overall objective. the Conmpany's capital management. amongst other things. anns to ensure that it meets the fimanctal covenants attached (o the mteresi-beanng loans and borrowmgs that detine
al structure tequirenients. Breach in meeting these 1

s manly inelude nunimum CRAR of 13%, rano of total outst

neal covenants would pemit the bank to immediately call loans and boowings There have been ne breaches i the financil covenants of an borowing w

e corrent pertod Loan covena

nding hability to total net worth 1o be less than o equal to 14 imes ete

Fair value measurement

Financial instruments by category (Amwimt i Rs OKF
B G N As at Axat As at
Fattlcqlits Category 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents Amutised Cost 103923 Th 4857022 205.111.64
Bank halance other than cash and cash equivalents Amottised Cost 20981441 10423 37 10,640.5%
Loans Amortised Cost GRR322T 00 5689074 00 1,326,941 04
Other Mnanvial assets Amortised Cost 3321 11 2.875.94
Total financial assets 7.202.286.37 2,751,173.12 4.743.567.20
Financial liabilities:
Trade pavables Sanorhised Cost 400321 RN O3 1.07828
Other pavables Amortised Cost 233933 1,704 41 1,393.27
Debt secumitie Aanworiised Cost 326,304 97 447 9%
Bomowings (other than debt secunties Amortised Cost 517341999 438,333 29
Other tinancial hathies® Amortised Cost G952 A0 60,803 20 58398 15
Total financial labilities 5.769,315.92 4.650,000.99 3.781.730.97

* Other financial habilines meludes habihie pertaming w lease halnhties covered under Indian aceomntmg standard - 116 (31 Mareh 2020 Rs 5,640 31 March 2019 Rs 4 YT4 1 Apnl 2018 Rs 10888 71y

rvalue hierarchy

e G values of the lnancisl sssets and habiiues are nchided at the amount that would be recened o sell an o Babality 10 an orderly transaction between market tcipants at the medsurement
date This section explams the judgements and estunates made emsed and oy mortised cost and for which
fanr values ore disclosed n the fnaneial statements To provide an mdication about the rehability of the inputs nsed m deternmunng far value, the Company has classified s financial mstruments mto the three levels

preseribed under the Indian Accounting standard These three levels are delined ba

sel or paid to transter
n determimng the G values of the financial mstruments tha

nd (b measired ot

J on the observabiliny of signmificant mputs to the measurement, as tollows

Level b: Level 1 luerarchy meludes Dmancial mstruments measured using quated prices. For example, hsted equity mstruments that have quoted g

price

15 determuned vsmg valuston techmgues which maxmmse the use of
vable. the mstument 15 meluded

Level 2 The twr value of fmancial matruments that are not traded 1 an scinve market (for example. traded bonds. over-the- counter denr

observable matket

nlevel 2

and rely as hittle us possible on entity -specitfic estimates 11 all s guificant nputs required 1o T valoe onnstrument are obs

Level 3: I one or more of the sgmilicant mputs s not based on observable market data. the instrument 15 meluded i level 3 Thas is the case for unhisted equity seonnties. vontingent consideration and indeninficati

asset ncluded n level 3

ial assets and Habiliti | at riised cost at each reporting
The canvamg value of cash and cash cquinalents. other bank balances, other finanenal assets. e

wther financtal habilites are considered to be approximately equal 1o the T value doe

(Aanount in Rs 000

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Carrving Value Fair Value Carrving Value Fair Value

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

h and cash equivalent 163,423 76 143,423 T 4837022
Bank balance other than cash and cash cquivalents 209 814 41 209814 41 10.423 37
Loans (883 227 ty 6.961 83639 5689074 G0 5.752.810 8
Other financral assels 33211 5321 11 330553
Total financial assets 7.202.286.37 T.280,915.67 17342

Financial liabilities:

Frade pavables 13 402013 NN 03
Other payables 253935 2534933 100441
Debt secuuities 326,300 97 526,041 18
Borrowngs (other than deln secunties 507541999 | 4,063,974 14
Other tinancial habihnes G932 40 A0,R03 20 fiby K03 M
Tutal financial liabilities 5.769.233.84 650,000, 99 4.660.901.56




Svatantra Micre Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as ro Huusing Finance Corporation Limited)

rended 31 March 2020

Notes t the financial statements for the v

cAmount in Rs (R

As at | April 2018

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Cash and vash equavalent 2511164 2311164
Other bank balanves 16,640 5% L0642 58
Loans 4526041 04 437001475
Other Ninancial assets IRTI 04 287344
Total financial assets 4.743.567.20 4.786,040.91

Financial liabilities:

Trade pavables 1078 1078 28
hher pavibles 129327 1,295 27
Debl secunines 262 - M1 A95 1%
Borowings iothet than debt secuntiesy R LY 3466700 10
Othwr Gnancial habihiies 3838 |5 SHUR 15
Total financial liabili 3,781,750.97 3.768,973.9%

1 Loans = All e loans given are st vanable rate of mterest and henee, te fan value of Noaung rate loans are deenied o be equivalent W the canving value

1y Burrowangs - All the borrowang taken are a1 oating rate of interest and hence s G value are deemed 1o be equivalent to the canving value adiisted with un-amortize transaction cost

1 Debit securities are lease Talnhties - The fair value of debt secunties are determmed by discountmg expected futire contraciual cash Mows using current market interest rates charged for simular new loans

Dunng the pernsds mentioped above. there haye been no tianst

ers amongst the levels ol hierarchy
38 Finaneial risk management

Rix
The Company 1s exposed to certann financial nsks namely credit sk, hgudity risk and market nsk 1 mteres

. Torergn currency nisk and price rsk The Company's primary focus 15 1o achieve better predictabihity ot

e risks on s fnancial assets and habihtes

ancial performance by effectively managi

financial markets and mimmize potential adverse effects on iis

such nsks The Company s

[he Principal ebjective in Compan's sk nanagement processes 15 o measure and monitor the vanous nsks assoctated with the Company's and 1o follow puolicies and procedures w0 adds

nisk management framework 12 drnven by s Board and 1ts sub-commutiecs meluding the Audit Commuttee. the Asset Luabiliy Management Comnutice and the Risk Management Commintee. The Company gives due

mnportaniee 1o prudent lendmg practives and have implemented sutable measores for rsk mutgation. which mnelude vennication of credit bustony from credit ntormation bureaus. personal venfication of 4 custoner s

business and residence, valuation of collateral, techmeal and legal venficanons, conservative loan o value, and required tem cover for insuwance

A Liuidity risk
Liquidiny sk 1s defined as the nisk that the Company wall not be able to settle or meet 113 obligations on tme or at @ reasonable price: For the Company. Jiquidine risk anises from cbligations on agcount of financial
habuhities =lebt se vreenst and actual cash ows
and by matching the matunity profiles of finanaal assets and labihtes

tties. borrowmng. ade pavables and vther financiol labilittes. The Compam manages liquidity nisk by mantaining adequate cash reserves by continuously momtor

The tables below summ.

5 the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company's financial liabilities:

As at 31 March 2020 (Amount i Rs 063
Particulars Within | year L-5 vears 5= 10 vears Bevond 10 vears Total
Trade pavables 4,103 21 - - - 410321
Ehher pay ables 253935 5 - - 153935
Dbt secunties 33.238 30 G90LTLS 30 3 - T43.954.00
Borrowms (other than debl secunties) 1,568 396 67 4,336 348 T3 T59.83532 8137 59 6.912.938.32
Lease Liabilit 4598 19 143630 - - 6,034.49
ther Linang 3531272 - - - 82.312.72
Total 168K 3KRK 64 5248 500.38 T59.835.32 28.137.59 7,724882.09
As at 31 March 2019 (Amount in Rs (Ri00
Particulars Within | vear 1-5 vears 5 - 10 years Bevond 10 vears Total
Trade pavables RN 03 - - - HEK.63
Other pavables 1.194 41 . - - 1,19441
Delt secunities 33238 50 TA3 4934 0 - . 19250
Borrowines (other than debt secuniiies’ 224712 83 3ATu510 5% ®35.890 32 - S240.113.73
Lease habilies SUT8 R 505289 - - 1103170
Other financial hathiies 30,878 44 - - - 5682894
(Totat 1.342,842.12 3928317.47 RIS 890.32 = 6,107,249.91
(Amount in Rs 000°
Within I year 5 - 10 vears Bevond 10 vears Total
1078 28 - - - LOTR.28
Other pavables 1.293 27 - > - 1.293.27
Debt secunties 23042 50 260,042 50 - 415258500
s (other than debt secuntiesy 64627 RS 243380567 1144412 10 140374 454425139
rabhi 4841 63 7.650 935 - - 1249260
Other Dnancial babihibes 47,504 44 - - - 4750044
Total 1.044.393.02 2.541,626.62 143445460 14057, S.021879.98

B Market risk

(i Foreign currency risk
Fonergn cunency sk is the fish that the G value o fature cash Mows of an expusure wall Mectuate because of changes m forergn cureney tates The Company 15 et exposed 1o foregn curaney exposire

(i) Interest rate risk
The Company 1 subject to mterest rate nsk, sinee the rates of loans and bortown >
policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the financial sector i India. demestic and international economic and pohibical condions. inflation and other factors In order 10 manage interest rate nsk. the

nght Nuctuate over the tenure of nstrumient Interest rate s bevond contol, meluding the mone

are nghly sensinve (o many

cnn Joans The labilites are categonized inle varous time buckets based on their manmties and Asset Lyabihity Management Comnutiee
eat il

Company seek o optinuze borrowing protile between short-term and lon

SUPIVISE AN Uiterest Tate sensiaty repont penodically Fon assessment of inferest rate nshs Luans given to customers e rite of interest

Details of loans and horrowings
CAmount in Rs HEF

Particulars APRBLMERE | ARACILMICRT | narinaang
A 2019

Loans (vanabler 6,883 227 9 5689 074 1 4526441 04
Total loans (variable) 6,883,227.09 5,089,074.00 4,326.941.04
Borrowings and debt securities

Borrowimngs (vanable) 5175419949 4.035,374 03 3455533 29
Borrowimngs (ixed rate) 326,361 97 32554072 262,447 Y8
Tatal borrowings 5,701,720.9 4.581,114.75 3,720981.27




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
tFormerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Nutes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

e amterest rates ol other varables be

The following Lable demonstrates the sensitivaty oo reasanably possible cha

constant b of the Company's Statenient of profit and loss
(Anwunt m Rs (4407
Impact on profit before tax

Interest rate sensitivity* For the period For the period
2 1 April 2019 tu I April 2018 to
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Laoanx
Incrense by 30 basiis points 3441614 2844537
Previease by 36 basis points (34416 1 (RS 3T

Borrowings

Iner b 34 basts porits

S027TETY

Dwercase by 3t basis poants 20,277 87

= Haldmg all other varables as constan

Price risk
Exposure
The Compam's expusure price risk arise: and classified i the balunce sheet enther as e value theough other comprebensive come or at faw value thiough pronit and loss To manage the prce
nish ansing Fomonvestments, the Cony s The Compamy do not have any mvestment as on balancesheet date aither at fan value through other comprehensive meome or at i value

through profit and loss

Credit risk

Credit nnskos the sk that the Companmy will e a Toss b
cquivalents, o

¢ thewr contractual obly,

tse 115 customers o counterpanties Gl o discha
er hank balances, mvestments, loan assats and other tinancial assets The Company contmuously

ms The Company s exposure 1o credit nskos influenced mamly by cash and cash
tors defaults of customers amd other counterparties and meorporates this information mio its eredie nsk

cantrols

Credit risk management

Credit quality of assets

Credit nisk is the single Targest 11sk for the Company s business: Managenent ther
which periodically pr K of portfoho 1o the Risk
ched and documented pror o agning any contracts. based on market mtormation. Management endeavours W improve

ore carelully manages s exposure o credit sk A centralised nsk management function oversees the nsk manugement ramework,
Aanagenent Commtiee

iy an overview of creditr

Credit-worthimess 1s

s underwnitmg standards 1o reduce the credit nisk the Company 15 exposed
1o from bime Lo i

Expected Credit loss (ECL):

Credit Quality of Loans assets:

The followmg

table sets out mformation about cradit quality of loans measured at amormised cost hased on Jays past dug mformation. The ameunt represents gross carm ing amount

(Amount in Rs. ‘000"

31-Mar-20 S1-Mar-19 U1-Apr-18
Grass carrving value
6.691.477.01 SATR4 B4 41T 398 [0
1407579 426,482 72
145031 129.225 83
Total Gross carrving value as at reporting date 691600311 S.TIK.TH2S0 4.563.706.6%

Management of credit risk for financial assets

Cash and cash cquvalents and bank deposits
Creditnisk related 10 cash

o cash cqur

ents and bank Jeposits 1s

v rated deposits from banks and financial instiutions across the country

Othet tinancial assets d a1 amottized cost

Uther Tmancial assets measured al amortised cost include

Ians and advances o employees secuniv deposits msurance clam recarvables and other recoverable Credit nsk related 10 these other linuneial assets 15
nunaged by momtonng the recoverability of such amounts contimuously

Loans
The Company closely mronitors the creditsworthiness of the borrower s thiough mtemal svstems and appracsal proce:

o assess the vredit sk and define credit s of borower thereby lumting the credit sk by setting
Tt on the amount of nsk 1 1s willing to aceept for mdiadual counterparties These processes include a detailed apprarsal methodology identitication of risks and suitable structunng and cred vish mingation measures

The Company assesses merease i eredut nsk on an ongomg basis for amounts loan recevables that become past due and default 15 considered 1o have ovcurred when amounts recevable become 90 days past due

Collective assessment of ECL
Smee the pany 15 mte retatl kawding business to nwal and senu-urban arcas which are are greater m oumber but lesser i value. there 15 no
v and hence the Company has caleulated us ECL allowanees o a collective b done on on imdi adug

ificant credit nisk of any indivadual customer that may impact Compant
s on the Company's isignificant exposire on corporate and builder loans

adhe

Inputs considered in the ECL model
Definition of default
A detault on 3 fin:

115 wheen the counterparty fatls 1 make the contractual payments within 90 davs of when they fall due Accordingly, the

4 W on the reporting Jate
1 has heen 90 davs past due: Non-pament on anather obhigation of the same customer 15 also considered as a stage 111

Exposure at default (EAD)
The EAD represents expected outstanding exposure s

hrect to credit sk at the perodfdate. when Jetault 1s considered. The Company does cash Qow mapping based on contractual matunty for loans m Stage L using the
exposure at detault i future vears and the probabihity of detault estamation based on macro vanables: For stage [ and stage 11 as an approximation balance sheet outstandmg 1s used

Loss given default (LGD)

I is defined as the percent < n the event of default

i nisk of exposure that s not expected o be recove
Based on an analvas of histonical data, the Company has e
using interest rate of the loans. While ating LG percentage. 1047 ecovenies

tmated the loss given default, g listongal rec

very cost This 1s referred 1o a3 the workout iethod Such recovenies are discounted

e estunated for the

es where the recovenies are absolutely certam o happen within a short perioad of ime

"Probataliy of default’ (P13 s defined as the probabiliy of whether the borrowers will default on ther obligations i the fu cts Which are in Stage 1 g 12-month PI s required For Stage
PD s requied while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 160% PD Histoncal DPD data s utihized to caleulate through the evele PP analy sis nacks the migration behayviour of
s duterent buckets= Current. 1-29 DPD. 36G-3% DPD. 60=8% DPD. 90+ DPD G the 12 month and Bifctme persd

For ¢

statie pool ol loans aetve an the

endd ol each vear ac

Forward looking information

rward looking mivmaation 1s meorporated in the measurement of probabiline of default and consequently 1 meastrement of 1
(Furecast P> The maodel caleulates an AC (Asset Correlationi Tactor and converts the probatlity using the macro-econonue v
actual and forecast imtomation, the Compant foms o base ©

The Vasicek model 1s used for converting the TTC 1 Through-the-Cyeley PD i FC
table selected which 13 GDP growth tte Based vn the consideration of o vanety of

nvolves

view of the Tutwre duection of GDP growth rate as well a3 a representative range of other possible forecast seenanos This proces:
developm,
more pes
Further. m the global pandenue Covid 19 management overlavs are applied i Jeterounng forward lovking scenanos 1t ss considered by e
Industrial research by vanous eredil ratng agencies

wo or more additional econotine seenanos and considering the

slative probabilines of cach outcome The base case represents a most hikely outcome while the other scenanos represent nore optimistic and
st outeomes

atng all rele

wnt intemtal and reasonably available estemal dta namely




Svatantra Micra Howsing Finance Corporation Limited
(Furmerly known as ro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Significant increase in credit risk
An assessment of whether eredt nsk has mereased sigmiicantly smeg minal recogmition 15 performed at ¢

ach reporting period by considerng the change in e nsk of defaull eceurmmg over the remanung hife of the loan

enposure However unless swkentified at an vathier stage. the Company have determined all assets me deemed to have sulered o sigmificant uiceease i credit nsk when 30 days past due

[

The Company have also conducted a quantitative assessient of
probabihin of default

Hheant increase 10 credit nsk CSICRY ol the Toan porifolio with respeet o the conid 19 pandenie scenano. based on analysis of percent

werally the case when the Company deternuines that the debtor does not have assels or sourees

o meome that could generate sufficent cash Mows fo repay the amounts subject to the weite-off Tlowever. fmaneral assets tat are witten off could stll be subject w enforcement sctvities under the Company s recovery

provedures taking mto account fegal advice where approprate: Any recoveries made are recognised i Statement of Protit or Loss

Collateral
Me Company holds collateral to mitigate eredit nsk associated wath Diancial assets The mam tpes of collateral inelude vesidential properies The collateral presented telates 1o mstiuments that sre measired at
amwortised cost

(Amount n Rs 000"

Particulars A at As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 1 April 201%
Properties (amount o collateraly 13105371 54 582203 61 ¥ 125053 16

Credit Risk expusure

1) Expected credit losses for Tmaneial assets other than loans CAmount i B Uy
Estimated gross | Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2020 losses net of impairment
provision
Cash and cash cquivalonts - 103,523 76
Rank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 98141 B 20981441
Seemty deposits 1705 3 . 179534
Other linaneral assels 443 77 - 44577
Estimated gross | Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at 31 March 2019 carrying amt at losses net of impairment
default provision
Cash and cash equivalent 4837022 - 48.370.22
Bank balances other than and cash ¢quivalents 10,425 37 - 1042337
Security deposits Llle 43 - e 43
Other tinancial assels [8Y I - 184 10
Estimated gross | Expected credit Carrying amount
Asat 1 April 2018 carrying amt at fosses net of impairment
default provision
Cash and cash cquivalem 203,111 64 - 203,111 64
Hank balances ather then cash and cash equivalents 1.0 38 - 10,640 38
Seetmiy deposits 234225 - 254223
Other tinancial assets 3171 -

i) Expected credit koss for loans
Changes in the gross varrying amount and the corresponiding ECL allowances in relation ta loans from beginning to end «

reporting perind:
cAmount 1n Ks G0y

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross carrying amount as at April 1 2018 4 007 398 10 426 882 72

Ass 2092383 07 12,155 69

Net transfer between stages

ransfer 1o 1 189,042 74 (1 270 (36.090.05)

(54468 431 R 12343 (24,634 U8}
CHG4d T4y (IR S12 600 3
Assels derecomised v collected (excliding wiite 743 968 KK) (188,306 951 (18722 70)
Gross carrving amount as at March 31 2019 ATN3H1R4 152, 78958 R763L0K
Assets ongimated 2.180.887 79 T.du9 1y 3a 12

[ranster 1o st

Transter to stz

Net transfer hetween stapes

Transter tu stage | 62,045 02 (39, 174 94 12870 08)
Fransfer 1o stag (68 941 56y TUATR G0 (1237 34y
Transfer Wi stage 3 (33.555.65) (3207292 6762857
Assets derecogmsed o collected texcluding wate offs) (923 300,43y (23 143 42y (41038 04
Gross carrving amount as at March 31 2020 6.691,477.01 114.075.79 1n450.31
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:

Particulars Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3

Loss allowance as on April 1 2018 4,433 66 19,088 KU 12605
Assels onginated 137902 358900 CAES

Nt transfer between stages

Transter to stage | 11878 21 {8 39w 03 13279 1%y
Tra (143,641 3,009 42 12865 T¥)
Tra (3364 (143620 1 46993
Assets derecogmsed v collected fenchiding wiite ofts (13.747 38) I 29 (8001 21
Laoss allowance as on March 31 2019 3966, 1% 11,220,358 15,032.98
Assels orpmmated 3876 1K 4548060 4476.28

Net nanster between stages

1.265 90 3808 71y (397 164
LR 289 30 (7122
[T 12678 THY 27454

Assets derecogmised or collected Cexcludimg wirte offs) (4.0630.84) 34y (7747 74

Loss allowance as on March 31 2020 729288 6.980.85 19.438. 38

Concentration of loans
e Company monttors concentration of credit nsk on the basis of howsing™Non housing m which (e bormower operates

As at 31 March As at 31 March

Concentration by type of loan As at | April 2018
) 2020 2019 P

Housing 6,700,743 64 5616, 108 58 43064 606 3%

Non housing 216,193 35 103, 184 95 194 360 24

Gross carrving Amount 6,916,939.19 5.719,293.51 4.563,906.82
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Furmerly known as Micre Housing Finunce Corporation Limited)

Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-1%)

The vutbreak of Covid=19 pandemie aeross the globe and i India has contrbuted to o sigmificant dechne and volauline i the global and Indian finaneial markets and slowdown i the eeonome

activities. The Company through it's Ninaneial sevices offers home loans 1o alfordable housing segment In uecordance with Reserve Bank of Indu (RED gtdelimes, the Company has proposed

the pavment of ll prneipal mstalments and / or mterest, 1o all ehgible borrawers classified as standard. even i overduc as on Ecbrian 29 2020 Howeve

lewekdown

Further, the Company has. based on current avalable stormation csimated and apphed management overavs for the purpose of det
over the potential maciomceonomic umpact. the Company < man

ment has considered internal and extenial mformation ancluding credit repurts amd economue 1o

statement
Retirement benefit plans

Defined henefit obligation

I'he Company has the followng defined benetins plans

Particulars

Granary mon - funded!

As per Tnd AS-19 Emploves Benefits  the diselostne of Emplovee benefits as detined i the Standard are gven below

In accordance with Tndian Accounting Standard 19, actuanal valuation was done 1n respect of the atoresard defined benefit plan of gty based on the following assumptions

impact of the pandamic was neghgit

munation of the provision for imparment of financial ass

motatonum benehit on

e tll snouncement of

cinven the uneertanin

astz up to the date of appeoval o these finaneal

As at

Particulars 31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

As at
1 April 2018

Actuarial assumptions
Mortaliy rate Indian Assured
Livesi 20006-08

Uimate Mortaliy

Tudran Assured
Livesi 20416083

Indian Assured
Lives{ 2006-U8}
Hlumate Moralin

Particulars 31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Rates Rates
Discount rate tper annumi 65
Rate of salary nerease 7 5% (%
Withdrawal (Rate of emphwvee wmover ) 1% at al ages| 1% at all apes| 125 at all ages
{Amount m Rs 001
. For the vear ended | For the year ended
Particulars -
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Changes in the present value of defined benefit abligation
Present i of obligation at the begmming of the vear
(Benetit Pard From the Fundy 242y
(Benetit pard direetly by the emplover) - -
Actuanal (g om obligations - due W change i denographie assumplions B )
Actnanal (g; on obliganons - due 10 change in Nnancial assumptions 151% 26 75926
Actvarial (gains) / 5 on obligations - due w experience EER 775
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 10.973.19 5,607.26
As at As at As at

1 April 2018

Axsets and liabilitics recognised in the balance sheet

sent value of the defined beneit obligation at the end of the year 10,973 14
Funded status - deficut -
Net (linhility) / asset recognised in the balance sheet HL,973.1%

3,607 26

S.607.26

4390587

450987

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Amount in Rs '

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Expenses recognised in the statement of Other comprehensive income (OCT)

Curent service cost 292156 1.229.21
434 30 350 4y
Net gratuity cost recognised in the current year 335712 1,584.70

(Amount m Rs 0

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended

31 March 201%

Actuaral loss on post emplovowent benefit obligation 200222 7701
Tatal remeasurement cost for the year recognised in OC1 2.102.22 77701

Reconciliation of net asset / (lability ) recognised:

CAmeunt i Rs (6

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 201%

Openng Net Liabilaty

nised at the end of period

emsed m other comprehensive meone
Net Laalaly /
Net (Liabahiy) £ As:

et} Transter In

5.607 27
333612
20222

(¥242)

159987
1,585 70

77701

Benefit pad 11.355532)
Emplover's Contribution 2 -
Net Liability/t Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 10,973.19 3,607.26

Sensitivity Analysis:

CAmount i Rs G0

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Delta effec
Delta effect of 1% change m rate of discowitng

of +1% change i rate of disconnting

Delea cffect of +1% change m rate of salary incre

Delta effect of 1% change n rate of salary increase

(1,794 63

1794 54
Lt 79
.6 45
(RO RO
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corparation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
Adiount in Bs 0607

Viar For the year emled | For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

I vear Tl 54 [ORET]

Sumof ye 1204 07 1345 22

Sum of years & o 10 61435 11555

Sum of years 11 and above (13,288 Gt 405 434 00

Defined contribution plan

The Company contribules towards provident fund for emplivees which 13 the detined contribution plan tor qualifving emplovees Tnder this Scheme. the Company 15 required 1o connbute specified pereentage of the
parroll cost o fund the bene
arad 31 Murch 2019, respectively

The Compam has recogmsed Rs 6.08% thousands and Rs 3684 thousands towards provident Tund contributions i the Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Leases
Company as lessee
The Company s e,
term exemption it

s for oflice premises & guest houses |e ¢ tem hetween | o 3 vears The Company has applicd shon

s of offive prenises and giiest houses penerally have
Teases for prenuses accordmgly are exvluded from Ind AS 116

Setout belonw are the carmving amounts of nght-of-use & tecoguised and e movenents duning the peried

Amnownt i Rs HOG'

Particulars
| As at April 2018
Addits
Dipreciation expenses for the vear

s

As at March 2019 Xl

Additions 1064 18
Depreciation expenses for the vear 3578 vl
As at March 31, 2020 550863

tout below are the carrving amounts of lease labihites aneluded under imerest-bean

oans and borrawigs) and the movements dunng the petiod
Amount i Rs 00

Particulars Tutal

As at April 2018 L0,888.71
Additions A2 68
Acuretion ol interest 10152
Pavinent 341063
As at March 2019 9,974.26
Addons 10312
Acercton of interest R4112
Pavment G X8 N
Ax at March 31, 2020 5,639.69

The maturny analvsis of lease habilities are disclosed i Note 41
The effectnve mterest rate |

lease halahtres 15 1%, with matunty between 2021-2026
The following are the amounts recomused in profit or Joss Amount in Rs ‘ars
For the year ended | For the year ended

|Particulars

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation expense of rght-of-use assets 3193 0% 3636 40
Inberest expense on lease labiliies 1.541 25 1.0%] 52

Expense relating to shovi-term le: cluded in other expensest 12705 AGT U2

Fxpen:

atng (o leases of low-value assets (included m other expenses) - -

Vanable lease pavments f any ineluded w other enpenses) - -
The Company had total cash outTows for leases of 26313 84 thousands i FY 2019-20 thousands in FY 2018-19

Segment information

Business segment

Operating segments are teported ma manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Cliel Op
tmg Segments | the Comipar

ng Decision Maker sult of the whule

e business [a

CODM The CODM regularh monntors and reviews the ope
Is under this one operational segment

Company a5 one segment of "Fmancing” Thus, as detined in Ind AS 108 “Ope

Entity wide disclosures
Nao revenue from transachions with a single external customer or counterpity amounted 1o 10% or more of the Company s total reventie i vear ended 31 March 2620 and 31 March 2019

The Company vperates in single peography 1e India and theretore, geographical information 3 not required to be disclosed separately

First time adoption of Ind AS
First Ind AS Financial statements
These Financiol Statepwent of the Company 15 the 1irst Tinancial statements prepared in sceordance with Ind AS

e financral statements for the vear ended

The sccountig policies set out in note 1 have been applhied i preparmg the financial statements for the vear ended 31 Morch 2020, the comparative imformation presented m the:
31 March 2014 and i the prepatation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 Aprit 2618 1 the date of ranaihony In preparing 1ts openng Ind AS balance sheet. the C.
ements prepared m accordance with the accounting standands notiied under Companies (Accountng Standards) Rules. 2006 (as amended) and otha relevant provisions of the At (previous GAAP o

mpany has adyusted the amounts reported previously

n fnancial st
Indian GAAP),

Tullows

Anexplanation of how the tansition from previous

Exemptions and exceptions ay ailed

SAAP 1o Tnd AS has atfected the Company s financial postion ncial performance and cash Mows i

Setout below are the appheable Ind AS 101 optional exemption and mandatory exemption apphied i the tansinon (rom Indian GAAP 1o Ind A8 The Company lias apphed the following exemptions/ exceptions

Optional exemptions availed
Application of Effective interest rate -

As per Ind AS 100 18 1t 1s impractical to apply the
amount of that Gnancial asset or the new amertised ¢

Tective mierest method n Ind AS 109 retrospectively, the fur value of financial assets or finaneral lability at the date of wansion 1o Ind AS 15 the new gross camving

t of that financial habihie

Accordinglv. the Company has elected the above exemplion of Tair value neasurement of fimancial assels or financisl habilitics

Deemed cost fur property, plant and equipment and insestment property -

The Company has elected o measure property. plant and equipnient and mvestment property at ats Previous GAAP carrving amount and wse that Previous GAAP carmving amount a5 1ts deemed cost at the date of
transition lo Ind AS

Lease:
The Company has avanled the exemprion o assess wheth

tion o [nd AS

gement contains @ lease based on licts amd crrcamstances existing o date of tear

Mandatary exceptions applied

Estimates

Anentity s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transion to Ind AS shall be consistent wath estmiates made for the same date i aceordance with Indian GAAP (ufter adjustments o reflect any difterence
b unl
Ind AS estimiates as an 1 Apnl 2018 are consistent with the estimates os at the sane date made m conformity with Tndian G-
of tansiton as these were not required under Indian GAAL

sunting puhie there 1s objective ev idence that thoese estimates were ul o

AP othet than estimates Tor Expected Credit Loss miodel i aceordance with Ind AS at the dote

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires am entity o assess classificanon and measurement of financial assets on the b
sime

of the facts md circumstances that éxast at the date of transiton to Ind AN The Company has comphied with the

Impairment of financial assets
Ind AS 101 provides relaxanon from applving the inpanment related requirements of Ind AS
avatlable without undue cost or effort t detennine the credit nsk at the date that linancial mstruments were
sllowanee at an amount equal o hifetime expected credit losses at each reportmg date until that finoncsl st
o etfort The Comp o apphy Ind AS 109 pt lv from the Ja ansition to nd AS

09 rerospectively. AL the date of ransition, 11 requires an <nliy To use reasonuble and supportable information that 1s
Lally recogmised and compare that to the credit risk at the date of transiton 1o Ind AS or recogmse
nent 15 de-recogsed. 1t at the date of tansition to Jnd A% deternunation of ceedit sk imvolves undue cost

loss

w has cle




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micra Housing Finance Corparation Limited}

Notes to the financial statements for the year caded 31 March 2020

B First time adoption reconciliations

I Recenciliation of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019
(Amount m Rs MKy
Particulars Previous GAAP Ind AS Adjustments Ind AS
Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 4%.370.22 - 18370 22
Hank balances other than cash and cash counvalents 1042337 - 10423 37
Loans 3.750,250.27 (61,136 18 5.6K9.073 94
Other financtal ussets 4,007 90 702 37) 330553
SKL3.031.76 (61 458.65) 5.751,173.11
Non-financial assets
Current Lax assels (met) 3503 34
Iy estment Property -
Propeny., plant and equipment 4.706.27 125
Other imtangible asscts 302 -
Raght of Use assets - 10,61957 1001437
Other non-linancial assets 39RO 1647 93
24.567.13 68560 25,252.33
Tatal 5.837.598.89 (61,173.05) 5.776,425.84

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities

Financial liabilities
Trade Pavable

Dbt secuit

2083 ud - 2083 04
31.000.00 {3454 2%)

Borrowings fother than debl sccurinies: 4063974 14 [ [ETEVR
Other Ninancral abilines S0 %28 U3 VTS
4.635886,13 (5885, 14} 4,650 100,99

Non Financial lishilities
Current 1ax habalinies (net

Deferred tax habilities inety 49130 (3104209 (27051 30

Provisions. 3.R07 00 - 3607 (K1

Other non fnancial labilies 333928 - 335028
33,157.67 (51.042.69) (17.885.02)

Equity

Equuv share caputal =

Other equty R0, (424522
1,148,548, (4.245.22) L.1-H.309.60
Tutal 5.837.598.62 (61.173.05) £.776.425.587
11 Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018

(Amount i Rs 060"

Partivulars Previous GAAP, Ind AS Adjustments Ind AS

Assely

Cash and cash cqun alents 20301164 - 205 111 64

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - 10640 58

Trade recervables (HIRG51 36y 4526041 04

Toanz (767 26) 2873 94
4863, 28582 (119.718.62) 4.743.567.20

Non-finanvial assets

Cunrent tax assels (net) 106280 - T.062 89

Deterred tax assets (net) s - =

Investment Property - 5671

Property, plant and equipment 1,732 54 1481 83

Right ot t s -

Other non-financial assets 4600 90 7501 47

18,396.33 27.952.86
Total 488168215 (11,162.09) 4.771.520.06 |
s and Equity
4

Financial liabilities

Trade pavable 237155 - 2371 35

Dbt secunties 263 (K1} (2.352.02) 262,447 9%

Bormrowmngs (other than debt secunties 3,466,704 10 (®ATIR 345,333 29

Other linancial habiles 47500 44 1URRS 71 SR30R 1S
3,781.590.09 16088 3.781,750.97

Non Financial liabilities

Provision 4,399 87 - 430987

Deferred tax lubihies inaiy 15960, 95 (4260271 (2263575

Other non fimancial habilines 348412 - 584 12

030,95 H2,602.71) {12.551.76)

Equity

Foquiny share captal 302,275 73 {50,491 35y 784 A0

Other equity T6T.705.35 7340530 44

LOT0,040. 10 (67.720.26) 102,320,854

Total A.N81.682.14 (L10,162.09) 4,771.520.05




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Li
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Linited)

Notes o the fancial statements or the vear ended 31 March 2020

HT Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and loss Tor the vear ended 31 March 2019
fAmount m Rs (A0

Particulars Previous GAAP| Ind AS Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations
Tnturest meome 568 17444 92 386,405 70
Fee and comnussion ncone 16 RS 43 (46414 16) 37424
Net gaim on i value changes 16182 81 - 16 182 81
Total revenue from operations 631.932.04 (28.969.24) 602.962.80
Other mconw 86 U 19835 6835 3]
Total income 632 419.00 (28.770.89) 603.648.11
Expenses
Fmance costs IR6.791.62 38529 189,976 91
Tmpaimient on fnancial instruments 775013 (18 L3N0 ST
Emplevee benefits expenses Olh 54 TIT 0L
Drepreciation and smortisation expense 319273 7.549 81
Other expenses 4831641 (10,061 31y IX,255 40
Total expenses 321,176.28 (20.591.66) S040,384.68
11124272 (8.179.29} 13063.43
Tax expense
Cunrent tax 2870456 . 28,704 56
Deterred tax 102444 {R2IIZTH [ERE ]
Profit/{loss) for the vear (A) 3442 THE4R
Other Comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and Joss
Remcasurement of the net detined benetit labihey yasset - 177700 177701y,
Inconie tax relating to the above - 22627 26.27
Other comprehensive incame/(loss) for the vear, net of tax (B) - (777.01) (350.74)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the vear (A+B) T8.513.72 {742.59) 77.997.40
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly Known as ) Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

tes to the financial statements far the vear ended 31 March 2020

Equity reconci CAmotnt m Bs O
Particulars ok Equity as at Equity as at
31 March 2019 1 April 2018
Equity as per Indian GAAP (A} LI48.554.82 LOTO041. 140
Ind AS Adjustments
Impact of Financial abilines & Debt secunties measored at amartise, ) | 32462
Impactof EIR of loans measured at amortised cost [SN] i
Impact ol reversal of deferred tax on special reserve B3 2739072
pact un account of provision For expected credit loss on lnancial assets L2 {11896 03
wed at amortisad cost o} -
Tmpact on account of fease sccountg as per Ind AS 116 s 62717 .
Related to Company's emplin ee trust BX - (63UK1 62)
Equity contribution from parent
Deteried tax vn atun ¢ adiustiments €7 17.817.23 132119
Total adjustments (4245 24) (67,720.26)
Equity as per Ind AS (A) 1.144.309,58 1002.320,84
Reconciliation of total comprehensive income
Nute For the perind
Particulars 1 April 2018 to
31 March 2019
Total net profit after tax as per Indian GAAP TREILTS
Ind AS Adjustments
Imipact mancial habilitres & Debi secunties measured at amortised cost £l 21087
Impae TR of loans measured ut amortised cost il 120,669 U8
Impact on account of provision fin expected credit loss on financial assets c2 14,482 54
Funaneial assets measwred at amortised cost 3 (290601
Impac ever deferved tax on spectal reserve c4 3
T account of lease (8]
Remeasurement of gams/ (k Cn
Adpustments related o Company's Emplovees Tiust
Deferred tax on above adiustiments c7
Total adjustments
Praofit after tax as per Ind AS
Other Comprehensive income
Remeasurement of gaimy/ (losses ) on defined benelut plans (77701,
ferred tax on above adiustiment 627
0.74)
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS T7.997.40

Reconcilation of Cash flow far the year ended on 31 March 2019
(Amount in Rs 000

Previous GAAP Ind-AS
Particulars for the year ended 31 March | for the vear 31 March Change
2019
Cash flow fro [IKD a0y 3
Cash low from financing achivines H39 478 83971192 L2320%)
Cash low from investing acivitics 11659 08 14 4 od 13340 901

ations

Explanations to recon

Interest income and expense measured using effective interest method

Impact of Financial labilities & Debt i | at amortised cost
Under previous GAAP. the transaction costs related 1o borowings were amortised on strarght Iine basis over tenure of the loan trom the date of disbursment m the Statement of Profin and Toss and Debenture ssue
anty preapum Undee [nd AS such costs are amortised wver the contiactual term of the borrowings & Jdebt secunties and reve,

expe expense using elfective iterest method i
the Statement of Protit and Loss

Impact of EIR of loans measured at amortised cost

Tinder previous GAAF. ongmation fees was recogised on cush basts and transaction cost was recogmised on accrual basis uptront Under Ind AS. such ees and costs 15 amortised over the

5 are adjsted aganst se

wpected Nife of the loan asse
and revogmised as imterest income using etfective mterest method

Impact on accoun
Unider previous GAAP. the Company has created provis
deteimuned based on Expected Los

provision for expected credit Joss on financial assets
n for loans and advances based on the Guidelmes on prudential norms issued by National Housing Bank Under Ind AS, nmpatmment allowance has been

Financial assets measured at a

Pnder previons GAAP. interest fiee secunty deposit given 1o landlord for prenmses rented. 1s reconded os an asset Uider Ind AS, such depos wl are imitially recognised at fane value The

s given are fnanaal assets

dhfference between the Far value and ransacion value of the deposits has been recogmised as Right of use asset and deprevciated over the Tease term - Subsequently, the depostt will be measured al amortised cost resulling
into acerual of fmance neome m the Statement of Pront and Loss

Impact of reversal of deferred tas on special reserve
Under previous GAAP, the Company has ereated a Dty
constdered 1o be the permanent diffel

red Tax L

ity (IYTL Y on e special reserve n line with an opimon ffom the Expert Advison Committee (EAC) Howeter, under Ind AS, the ame

and thus, the deferred tax on the special reserved has been derecognised

T

Tmpact on account of lease accounting as per Ind AS Lo
Pinder the previous GAAP. lease rentalz related o operating lease were accounted
rent pavient on mitial date o

wded at present value of futwe contractial
ted over the petiod of lease ter

Apertse in Statement of Profitand Loss. Under Ind AS. Llease hability and ight of use 15 e
Tabilty RO 15 depn

corded Iy way of reduchon m le;

lease, Subsequently. linance costis acared on lease habyhny and lease payments a

Remeasurement of gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Under the previons GAAP. actuanal gams / Josses on defined benefit abligations were recognised in Statement of Profit wd i other

Luoss. Under Ind AS. remeasurements 1e actiunal gains and losses are recog

comprehensive meome

Deferred tax
Under the previous GAAP. deferred tax was aceounted as per the meome statenwnt approach which required ereution of deferred tax asset/ hability on timmg differences between taxable meome and accounting imeonw
Under Ind AS. deterred tax 15 accounted as per the balance ation of deferred tax asset/ labilin an
Sheet and its cormesponding tax The adiustments m equity and net profit. as discussed above. vesulted i addinonal temporary differences on which deferred tases e

porary ditterences between the carmving amount of an asset/ habiliy m the Halance
culated

heet approach which requir

hase




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

I statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

Nofes to the financi

Corporate social respensibility (CSR) expenditure
As per Section 135 of the Compar Acl 2013 a OSR commmitee has been formed by the Company The areas
samtation and making avadable safe dnoking water: promcating educaton. promoeting gender equalin. empowerning women and eosunng an rormental sust

werty and malnumnon, promotmg preventive health care and

SR sctivibies are eradicatmg hunge

nabiliny

nonnt in Rs 600"

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019
1a) Total amount to be spent for the Ginancial vear ncluding amount unspent in previous vears 352144 Favl
amotml spent dunng the vear L1o6 1 1122 Kb
et Ameunt wispent. - any 23935 2510
Nature of Expense on Corporate social responsibility Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019
Dumation tor halth camp BY 10 -
Epowctmg Women a 4006 00
Reduemg the inequalities faced by socrally and econoncally weaker sections o' the society -
Promating education - 300000
Enhancing vocsnonal skill ameng diffrently abled children 7200 13600
Promotng preventive health care and samtation 133 00 1300 300
Enswme Ammal welfare - 150 (80
Total 1,196.10 1,022.00

Followng disclosures as required under Section 22 of the Micro, Sniall and Mediom Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made 1o the extent mformation available with the Company
£ Y T v
dAarount i Rs AV

Particulars Asat As at Asat
31 March 2020 31March 2019 | 1 April 2018 |
(v Praneipal amwunt remamimg unpaid to any supphier as at the end of the accountng vear
K2R & i
() Interest due thereon rematming unpard to any' supplier s at the end of the accounbing vear
1y The amaount of mierest pad by the by i terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medum Enterprise,
Prevelopment Act. 2006, along with the amount of the paviment made to the supplier bevond the appomted day Jurng cach
deeoniing v ear - - -
(181 The amount of wierest Jue and pavable for the penod of delay n making payment (which have been pasd but bevond
the appomnted dav durng the vean but wathout adding the imnterest specifiad under Micto. Small and Medium Enterpr
Development Act, 2006
v The amount of mterest acervied and remaiming unpaid at the end of cach sccounting vear. and
(vt The amount of Turther mierest remaimng due and pavable even i the sueceedmg vears, unlil such date when the
miterest dues as above are actually pard to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprse Development Act, 20t6 _ -
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Svatantra Micrn Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

and estimation uncertainty

K1 Signific jud; in applyving accounting polic

neial statements requires management 1 make udgements. estimates

The preparation of the Company ' i assumptions that afTect the veported amounts of revenues. expenses.
o Dabsihties, and the relined disclosures
The Man:

hfer from these estimates and differences between actual results and estinates are e

assa

o

ons. Actual results could

menl hehieves that these estimates are pradent ond veasonable and are based upon the Management s best knowledge of curent events
enised in the pertods in which the results are known

T estumates and

This it provides am overvew of the areas that mvolved o higher degree of udgen v and of items which are nrore likely 1o be matenally adjusted du

assumplions lrming oul 1o be different than those ongmally assessed

il or comp

Recognition of deferred Lax assets
The extent to which deferred tay assc

ed 1 assets can be unlised

wan he ree sed 15 based on an assessment o the probabibity of the otore taxable meome agamst which the

48.2 Business model assessment
Classification and measurement ol finanaial assets depends o the resulis of the SPP1 and the business mudel test The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects

how groups of fianeial assets are managed together o achieve a particular business objective: This assessment ineludes udgement reflecting all relevant evidence meludmg how the
of the assets 15 evaluated and ther performance measured. the nisks that affect the pertormance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assels are compensated  The Conpany momtors financial assets measured at other comprehensive meomie that are dereeogmsed pown 1o then
matunty o understand the reason for then disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the obective of the business for which the asset was held. Momtorng 15 part of the
Company s continuous assessment of whether the busmess model for which the remammg financia] assets are held continues 1o be appropriate and if 1t 1s not appropriate whether there
has been a change 1n busimess model and soa prospectne

performanc

amortised cost or L vulue thro

silication of those assets

nge to the ¢l

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of apphcabiluy of mdicators of mparrment of assets requires assessment of several esternal and miemal factors which could resuli m dererioration of recoverable
amsunt of the assets

Expected credit loss "ECLY)

The measurement off expeeted credit loss allowance for hnaner amortised cost requires use of complex models and signiticant assumptions about futwe ceonom
conditions and eredit behavior e g ikelihood of customers defaulting and resulting Josses). The Compam makes sigmficant udgenients with regard to the tollowing while assessing
expected credit foss

assels mensured

ant inercase i credit sk,
s of forward-lovking seenanos for each tvpe of productmuarket and the assocrated ECL. and

Deternuming entena for sl
tablishing the number and relaive weightmn

Establishing groups of simalar fimaneial assets for the purposes of measuring FCT
Development of ECL model. including the vanous formulac and the chowe of inputs
Ithas been the Company s poliey to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary

Provisions
At each balance sheet date. hasis the management judgnient. chianges m facts and legal aspects. the Company assesses the requirement of prov
otiteome mav be diferent from tis judgement

ns agamst the outstanding contingent

lrabuhties He

Contingencies:
Management has estimated the pessible auttlow of resoure
as s nod possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accw ey

at the end of cach annual reporung financial vear f anv. i respect of contmgencies/clam/Mtigations agaimst the Compam

48.3 Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets
ews its estimate of the tserul hives of deprecrable/amortisable assets at cach reportmg date, bayed on the expected unliy of the assets Uncertamties i these estimales
cal and economie ohsolescence that mav change the unlity of a

relate to tech

484 Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management's estimiate of the DBO ¢
mereases. Varation in these assumptions may significanthy mpact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses. The assummptions tsed are disclosed in Note 3

ased on o nuber of underlyimg assumptions such as stondard rates of mtlatien, mortahity, discount. rate and antcipation of

48.5 Fair value measurements
Management applies valuation technigues W determine the fair value of finaneial mstruments (whe
assumptions consistent with how market participatts would price the mstument. For further details aboun determination of'

alabled This invelves developmg estimates and

active markel guotes are not

se see Note 33

480 Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination aptions — Company as lessee
The Company deternumes the lease term as the non-cancellable tem of the lease. together with any perods eovered by an oplion 1o extend the lease 1f it 1s reasonably certant to be
n ot 10 be exercised

eneraised, or any periosds covered Iy an option 1o ternunate the lease. 1 1018 1easonably ce

The Company has several e that de extension and termination options The Company app
toexerase the option o renew or terminate the lease. That 151t constders all relevant factors that create
the commencement date. the Company reassesses the lease term i thes
ROt 1o exererse thie oplion 1o renew of 1o lminale (e 2 constnie

tes judgenent m evaluating whether i 1s reasonably certnn whether or not
e for il o exerc
that 15 within its contral and attects s ability 1o exercise o
leased u

W Conlrac

¢ either the renewal or termination: Atler

N ECONOITIG 1N

s 0 stgnalicant event o change n cireun
significant leaschold improvements or

)

agmilicont custonusation to the

When 1 1s

determunation of lease ter

reasonably certam to exercise extension option and nel Lo exer

3¢ fermunation option, the: Company includes such extended term and gnore temunation. aption 1n

4K.7 Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannol readhly determae the mterest vate impliait in the lease, thorefore, 1t uses its increniental borrowimg rate (BR 1 1o measure lease lubilines The Company has taken

imdicative rates from s bankers and vsed them for Tnd AS 116 caleatition purposes
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Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Farmerly Known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Disclosures as required in terms of Housing Finance Comp. = Carparate G
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended, pursuant 1o the NHB circular no. NHB(!
* Amwounts mcluded herem are based on current and previous year nancuals: as per Ind AS

Capital to risk assets ratio 'CRAR")

The following table

13 orth, for the perieds nrdicated. the detanls of capital o sk assets rato uader NHEB Guaddines

DY/ DRS/REG/MC-07/2019 dated July 1, 2009 *2

Particulars Asat Kiat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
1 CRAR %) 36 3% Aot
1 CRAR =Twer [ Capatal « I 35% 36 33%,
i} CRAR = Teer [ Capital ¢ (1% 3%
W Amount of subordimated debt rased as Trer - 11 debt Nl Nil
&1 Amount ratsed by assue of Perpetual Nl Nil
Reserve fund under section 29C of NHB Act, 1987
(Amount i Rs 004
Asat As at

Particulars

31 March 2020

3 March 2019

Balance at the beginning of the vear

) Statutory reserve Ws 290 of NHB Ac. 1987

B Amount of special reserve ws 3600y (v of Dicome Tax Act 1961 taken o
dccount Tor the purpos itory Reserve under Section 290 of the NHB At 1987

SV

Addition/ Appropriation/ Withdrawal during the year
Add:

ap Amount transfermed ws 29C of NHB Act, 1987

b Amount 1al reserve w's 3601 (v of Income Tax Act. 1961 taken imnto sccount for the purposes of Statutory reserve
Section 29C of the NHB Act. 1987

Less:

@) Amount appropriated from Statutory reserve ws 29C of the NHB Act. 1987

B Amount withdrawn fiom the special reserve w/s 36013 (vini of Income Tax Act 1961 which has been taken into account for the
purpases of provision ws 29C of the NHE Act 1987

Balance al the end of the vear

a) Statutory Reserve w's 29¢ of NHB Aa, 1937
b Amount of spectal reserve w/s 3
Secton 29C of the NHB Act. 1987

af Statutory

Fr(vie of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken it account for the purposes

1,276 9%
114,098 43

6T 33

115.375.41

9533851

589297

1.276 48
119,991 40

Q036 90

1,276 9%

L1409

¢ Total

121.268.38

11537541

Investments

Particulars

A at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Value of investments
1 Gross value of mvestments
) In India
iby Outside India
1} Provision for deprecia
i In India
by Outside Indva
1 Net value of mvestments
ta) In India
b Outside India

Maovement of provision held towards depreciation on iny estments
1) Opening balance

1 Add Provision made durning the vear

mi

wite off / witten back of exeess provision dunng the vear

iv) Closing balance

The following table =

forth, tor the periods indicated. the detarls of nvestment under NHB Guidelines

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Value of investments
1 Gross value of mvesmanis
ia) InIndsa
by Outside India
sion for depreciation
v I Ind
iy Ouside Indha
a1t Net value of imvestments
v I el
by Outside India

1 Pro

Maovement of provision held towards depreciation on investments
alanee

A Provimon made dunng e
ni Less wnite off Zwnitten back of exee:

proviston during the vear

iv} Clasing halance




Svatantra Micro Howsing Finance Corporation Limited
tFarmerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Disclosures as required in terms of Housing Finance Companies — Corporate Governance
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended, pursuant to the NHB circular no. NHBNDYDRS/REG/ MC-07/2019 dated July 1, 2019 *:
52 Derivatives

521 Forward rate agreement (FRA) / Interest rate swap (IRS)

The Company has not entered mlo any transachion w fonward rale g eements and mterest rate swaps durng vaer ended on 31 March 2020 and 31 Mareh 2019

522 Exchange traded interest rate (IR} derivative

Fhe Company does ot have amv exposure 1o exchange iraded imterest rate (IR dernvatves as at 31 Mareh 2020 und 31 Muareh 2014

Securi

on
The Conpany has nol entered mto any Secuniisation and assigment transaction durmg vear ended on 31 March 2626 and 31 March 2019

53 Unsecured advances

The Compuant has nol grven any uns,

d advances aganst mtangble secunnes such as charge over the nights, Beenses, suthonity. ete dunng the financial vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

54 Disclosure of penalties impased by NHB and other regulatars

No penalties lvas been imposed by NHI eh 2020 and 31 March 2014

other vegulatons on e Company dunng the Tmancial vear ended 3103

53 Rating assigned by credit rating ageney and migration of rating
As at 31 March 2020
1) Dute of Rating OR-Tul- 14 31-Mar-20
1) Name of Raling Ageney CRISIL Ratngs Linuted CARE Ratngs Linuted
v Ratmg of Products
() Long term Bank [aaliies CRISITL A+/Stable CARE A+fStable
(b Debentures CRISIL. A+
(e Short term debt CRISIL Al+

As at 31 March 2019
1t Date of Rating 24 Jub 2018
(1) Name of Rating Ageney
i) Rating of Products

(a) Long term Bank facilities CARE A-
(b Debentures CARE A-

s Lumited

Provisions and contingencies

(Amount in Rs 0007

5 = :
361 | Break up of ‘Provisions and Cantingencies' shown in the Statement of Profit and Lass For the Year ended For the Vear ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Impairment on financial instruments
Provision for Standard Asse 3326 70 (467 48)
Provision for Standard Asser - Stage 1] (4 239 30 {X.TAK 34)
Proviston for non-performuing asset {Stage-1111 5001466 (1208813
Tax expense:
= Current tay 1134092 X704 56
- Deterved tax 15245 (4,189 29y
Employee benefits expense
Gramnh Fxpenses 335612 1,585 70

562 Break up of loan and advances and provisions thereon
(Amount i Rs 000
Housing Loan Non-housing
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Standard assets
23 Total outstanding amount 6393 158 2% 353060 21512717 101,053 23
b Provisions made 14,664 30 1304 2000 43 138 83
Sub - Standard assets
1) Total outstanding ameount 63,658 51 6163923 1.265 74
b Provisions made 11.766:32 11494 41 13235
Daoubtful assets - €
a) Total outstandin 26,0 Oy 153.39% 14 B3% 73 202 46

4683 04 1854 04 K306 -
| Doubtful assets = Category-11
a) Total outstandug amotmt 1333797 11063 45 27531 15243
B Provisions mad 28013 1552 06 £
Doubtful assets — Categary-111
8 Total outstandiig amount 300 R7 - uay =
I Provisions mesde [RED - - N
Laoss assets
) Total outstanding amount . . . .
b Provisions made - - - e
Tatal
a) Total outstanding amount 6,714, 743,64 5.616,108.58 215.259.46 102.673.91
b) Provisions made 33.380.21 29.948.14 33189 27138
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Svatantra Micra Housing Finance Corpuration Limited
(Formerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

(1]

osures as required in terms of Housing Finance Companies — Corparate Governanee

(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 ax amended, pursuant to the NHEB circular no. NHB(NDY/DRS/REG/MC-07/2019 dated July 1, 2019 *;

Contingent liabilitiex

Amwount s in Rs G000

Particulars

Ax at

31 March 2020

As at
31 Maeh 2009

Contungent Lialulnies*

ndrawn Commutiment gnven o Bomowers

TU1.906 32

Bank guarontee issued by Buk Linnted favonng the NTTH for refinance facilibies

187 50010

1061 0G0 1)

Total

1.304.414.94

* Dusputed meome tay demand aganst which the Company' has preferred an appeal betore Commusstoner of Income Tax ( Appeals)
Also. refer note 32 tor the detals of contmgent Tabthties

Draw down reserves
The Company has not made any draw down from reserves Jwig vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

Cancentration of public deposits, ady anves, exposures and NPA's
Concentration of Public Deposits ( for public Deposit taking/halding HFCs)

The Company do not aceept any pubhie deposits and henee the same 1s not appheahle

Concentration of loany and advances

R91.906.32

Aol n Rs 'O

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Total loans and sadvanees W twenty largest borrowers

centuge of Loans and Advances to twenty largest barowers o total advances of the HFL

31562
1.60%

6795447
119%

Concentration of all exposures ( including off - balance sheet exposure)

sAmeunt 15 n Rs (407

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Total exposure to twenny Largest borrowas / customers

Pacentage of exposures to twe

v largest borrovvers / customer s 1o ol exposure of the HFC on borrowers / eustomiers

BY.692 7Y

{.87%

6F.G05 HY
L 06%

Concentration of Non performing assets (NPA)

(Amount 15 Rs (/)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Total exposure t top ten NPA aceounts*

14834 0h

3548400

* The exposure 15 disclosed at customer level

Sectorwise Non performing assets{NPAs}

2 Builde
3 Corporates
4 Others

Proect loans

Sectorwise percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Housing loans : L61%
1 Individuals 161%

B Non housing loans :
1 Individuals
2 BuldersTropect loans
3 Corporates

4 OUthers

Maovement of Non performing assetsiNPAs)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

(I) Net NPA« to net advances (%)

127%

(11 Movement of NPAs ( Gross)

a) Opening balance

R7.651 12

129,225 #3

b1 Addinons durng the vear ¢ nief?

67 944 68

v} Reductions during the vear

45,143 463

o) Closing balance

110,450 34

11} Movement of Net NPAs

a) Openimg balance

2618 14

116,622 600

by Additions dunng the vear ety 3241708
©1 Reducnons duning the veir (76,421 54y
) Closing balanee S0l YT 201814

(V) Movement of provisions for NPAs ( excluding provisians on standard assets)

ab Opening balagee

15,032 9%

12603 23

b Provision made during the year inet) 12.721 .32 10,475 42
<) Reductions Junng the vear (8316 [3) EXCTHER
dy Closmg batance 14,438 37 15,632 98




Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited
{Formerly known as Micro Houosing Finance Corporation Limired)

Disclosures as required in terms of Housing Finance Companies — Corpurate Governance

{National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended. pursuant 1o the NHB circular no. NHB{ND)/DRS/REG/MC-07/2019 dated July 1, 2019 *:

G0 Overseas Assets & Off-balance Sheet special purpase vehicle (SPVs) spunsored
The Compay does not own am assets overseas durmg vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
There are noofl-balance sheet SPVs sponsored durng vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
al  Disclosure of complainis
Partical Asal Asat
Articulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a) No_of complamnts pending at the begumng of the vem = B
bi No_of complamts recenved durng the vear K 12
<) No_of complats redressed duwing the vear 13 12
d) No_of complaints pending at the end of the vea - N
62 Asset liability management (Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities)
CAmOUnLS K0
As at 31 March 2620
Liabilities Assels
Particulars Borrowings from banks, financial
institutions and non-convertible Loans and Advances Investments
debentures
Upto ome month (52963 63 158,734 51 n
Over 1 month and upto 2 months 45251 80 370k 30 =
Over 2 months and upte ¥ months 1347407 37440 7! -
Over 5 months and upto 6 months 283,127 45 161,904 9% =
Orver 6 months and upto | vear 542,323 76 241.286 98 S
Over | vear and upto 3 vears 2088 43647 1,336,799 U6 -
Over 3 vears and upto 3 vears 192843602 1.290,687 03 -
Over 5 vears und upto 7 years 503,132 97 LI29.715 10 =
Over 7 vears and upto 1 vears 1.237.8% 0] -
Over 10 vears 121581733 -
6,916,939.68 -
As at 31 March 2019
Assets
Particulars rrowings from banks, financial
institutions and nen-convertible Loans and Ay ances Imvestiments
debentures
pto one month 16,130 97 138 446 39 -
Over | month and upto 2 months hUR SR £ 45013 60 -
Over 2 months and upto 3 months 39 41083 81 -
Over 3 months and upto © months 36 11405 21 .
Over Gmonths and unto | vea 3l 231845373 -
Over | vear and upto 3 years 9] 1073 -
Over 3 vears amd uplo 3 vears 72 104455221 =
Over 5 vears and uplo 7 vears | 065,572 56 423028 24 -
Over T vears and upto 16 vears 246, 1.U75.400 38 -
Over 10 vears - 1 026,643 58 -
Total 458111474 5,719.293.5) -
63 Exposure
631 Exposure fo Real Estate Sector
tAmountis m (AY)
Category - N .
ot Current Year Previous Year
1| Direct Exposure
[ Residential Martgages -
Fending fully secured by mortzages on residential property that 1s or wall be oceupred by the borroweror that 1s rented RSO35S 5 660 675 37
i |Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by montgages on commiercial real estates (office buildings | space. multiparpose commea aal premises, mulbi-
famuly residential buildings. mulii-tenanted commercial premses. mdustnal or warchouse space. hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction. ¢te 1. Exposure would alse imclude non-fund based (NFH) limats
i Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
a) Reswdennal N i
b1 Commercial Real Estate - N
I |Indirect Exposure

Tund based and non-fund based exposures on Natwonal Housing Bank (NHB b and Housing Finance Companies
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antra Micre Housinz Finance Corporation Limited
(Farmerly known as Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limited)

Diselosures as required in terms of Howsing Finance € jes = Corporate G n
(National Housing Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended, pursuant to the NHB circular no. NHB(ND)/DRS/REG/MC-07/2019 dated July 1, 2009 *;

Exposure to Capital Market
The Company does not have ame Exposwe o Caprial Market as on 31 Murch 2026 and 31 March 2019

Details of of parent pany prod
Not appheable

Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Burrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC

The Company has not exceeded the prsdential exposure hnuts dunng the financial vear ended 31 March 2020 ond 31 Maely 2009

Registration abtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company 1s regrsiered with the tollowing other tinaneral sector regulators
o Munsuy of Corporate Alfaus
(i Reserve Bank of India

Revenue Recognition

There are no such vircunistanees in wlich revenue recogmition ias been postponed pending the resolution of sigulicant wneertmlies.

Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior periad items and changes in accounting palicies

ve Bank of Indis
oush reported Nnancial position

The financial staterents for the vear ended March 31, 20, tdehnes seued by the Re
¢ RBI') and National Housing bank (NHE ) wherever

financial performance and cash ows of the Company

20 e the tirst Tmaneial statemients which has been prepared i accordance with Ind AS and other applicabl
cable Refer note 43 1o the financral statements for an explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the pre

Related parry Transactions
(0 All matenal transactions with refated parties are disclosed in " Note 337 of the Finaneial Statements

nsactions on 1l website and 111 disclosed on s website

(1) The Company has the poliey on dealing with Related Purty T
here were no mstunces of aud reported dring the vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

Remuneration of Directors

During the vear. the Company has not pad any remuneration 1o 10's diréctors

IND AS 110 -Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

The Company' does nol have any subsidiary company and henee, the CFS 15 not applic:

Comparative Financial Information

The comparative financral mfonmation of the Company for the vear ended 31 March 2019 and the transation date opemng halanc
tinancial stotements prepaced m accordance with the Accounting Standards Specified under Section 135 of the Act read with reles ant rules wssued there under and other weounting preiples g
Chandick & Co LLP, pred
for the differences m the sccounting prnciples adopted by the Compant on transition to the Ind AS. which have been audited by Suresh Surana & Associates, LLP mcomung auditor

Events after reporting date:

There have been noevents atter the reportmg date that require adpustiment/diselostire in these Nmancial statements
Signiture to note 1 to 74

As per our report of even date attached

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP ‘On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Svatantra Micro Housing Finance Corporation Limted
Fum straton No 1217 S0W/W-10a0 10

Ramesh
Partnet Amil Chin
Membershy, 102306 MManaging Director Directar

Place: Mumba . DIN 07902331
b {9 Paxa-«st 2RO <\ oA ‘},}m

Tasneem Mandsorwala
Company Seeretary
Manbership No A34613
Place Mumba

Date 19 August 2020

DIN 6lox27 1Y

Sahil Mchta
Chiet Finaneial Ofice

sheet as at 1 Apnil 2008 mcluded m these fnanaial statements, are hased on the previously issued statutory
nerally aceepted m India audited by Walker
ssof auditor whose report for the vear ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 dated 26 June 201% and 6 June 2018, respectinehy expressed an unmoditied opinon on those financial statements, as adisted



